
ANNUAL REPORT
2010/2011





Gauteng Provincial Legislature

ANNUAL REPORT
2010/2011



The Gauteng Provincial Legislature (GPL) is the parliament 
of the people of Gauteng. The GPL fulfils its, constitutional 
obligations through its mandates of law-making, oversight 
and scrutiny, co-operative governance and public 
participation. 

The GPL must therefore, make laws that address the 
specific needs of the province, conduct oversight in 
relation to the departments of the province to ensure 
service delivery, promote co-operative governance 
for effective decision-making, and ensure public 
participation to incorporate the views of the people of 
Gauteng in the working of the GPL. 
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Acronym Description

AG Auditor-General

ATC Announcements, Tabling and Committee Reports 

AV Audio Visual

BBBEE Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BSC Balanced Scorecard

CBO Community-Based Organisation 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CI Constitutional Imperatives

CPA The Commonwealth Parliamentary Association

CPS Centre for Policy Studies

CRM Customer Relationship Management

CSSL Committee on the Scrutiny of Sub-ordinate 
Legislation

EAP Employee Assistance Programme

ECC Events Co-ordinating Committee

ED Executive Director

EEA Employment Equity Act

EFT Electronic Funds Transfer

EMS Emergency Medical Services 

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning 

EU European Union

EULSP European Union Legislature Services Programme 

FIS Focused Intervention Study

GEYODI Gender, Youth and People with Disabilities 
Committee

GPG Gauteng Provincial Government

GPL Gauteng Provincial Legislature

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

HC Human Capital

HR Human Resources

HRD Human Resource Development

HRM Human Resource Management

ICT Information and Communication Technologies

ID Identification Document

IEC Independent Electoral Commission

IoD Institute of Directorates

IP Intellectual Property

IPMS Integrated Performance Management System

ISS Institutional Support Services

IT Information Technology

JDA Johannesburg Development Agency

JMPD Johannesburg Metropolitan Police Department 

JOC Joint Operating Centre 

KM Knowledge Management

LAC Legislature Acquisitions Council

LIASA Library and Information Association of Southern 
Africa

LIMS Legislature Information Management System

LoGB Leader of Government Business

LR Labour Relations

LSA Legislature Service Act 

LSB Legislature Services Board

MAC Members Affairs Committee

MAD Members Affairs Directorate

M and E Monitoring and Evaluation

MPL Member of the Provincial Legislature

MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

NCOP National Council of Provinces

NEHAWU National Education Health and Allied Workers 
Union

NIA National Intelligence Agency 

OCPOL Oversight Committee on the Premier’s Office and 
the Legislature 

OD Organisational Development

OHASA Occupational Health and Safety Act 

OSS Operational Support Services 

PCO Parliamentary Constituency Office

PEBA Programme Evaluation and Budget Analysis

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PPMS Personnel Performance Management System

PPP Public Participation and Petitions

PSOM Public Service Oversight Model

ACRONYMS
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PSTN Public Switched Telephone Network 

SADC Southern African Development Community

SALSA Secretaries Association of Legislatures in South 
Africa 

SANGONET South African Non-Governmental Organisation 
Network 

SAP Systems Applications Processes

SAPS South African Police Services

SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts

SDA Skills Development Act

SETA Sector Education and Training Authorities

SLA Service Level Agreement

SLIS Special Libraries and Information Sector

UNISA University of South Africa

VoIP Voice-over Internet Protocol
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Your View ~ Our Vision
The Gauteng Provincial Legislature (GPL) was established in 1994 in terms of the 1993 Interim Constitution of the Republic 
of South Africa. It now exists in terms of section 108 of the 1996 Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Constitution). 
The GPL is an autonomous institution, empowered by the Constitution to make laws, oversee the performance of the provin-
cial government, promote co-operative governance and carry out public participation for the electorate of the Gauteng 
Province. Since its establishment, the GPL has focused its energies on building an institution that gives effect to its constitutional 
mandates. This has not been a static process. Increasingly, the GPL had to gear itself to respond to broader developments 
within the national and provincial environment.

The GPL is located in a province characterised by a rapid process of transition, growth and development. South Africa’s 
second decade of democracy has brought with it high expectations from the people of Gauteng, that the vision of a “Better 
life for all” will become a reality. In this context, there is an increasing expectation that the government will deliver on its 
promises through effective governance and service delivery. In line with this expectation, is the strategic choice of the GPL to 
be more visible and active in its role as the voice of the people. The GPL has chosen to assert its role as a key institution of 
democracy. To achieve this, it has to, amongst other tasks:

�� Deliver on its constitutional mandates;

�� Position itself as the voice of the people;

�� Ensure that the public understands its roles and functions;

�� Harness, co-ordinate and motivate its internal resources; and

�� Report and communicate its achievements to the people of Gauteng.

In view of the above, the GPL has accelerated its political mandate of mobilising social forces around public participation, 
whilst also transforming itself into an agent of change, and representing a democratic institution ready to discharge its key 
role in social transformation, by encouraging public participation in its core activities, thus soliciting the views of the elector-
ate and ultimately converting this vision into reality.

Vision Statement

Fostering public pride and confidence in democracy and enhancing service delivery to the people of Gauteng.
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mission statement
In observing our constitutional obligations, the GPL will:

�� Be a modern, dynamic African legislature of the 21st Century;

�� Be a caring, responsive, activist and transformative legislature;

�� Reflect the values, aspirations and cultures of South Africa;

�� Be the most competent accessible, transparent and accountable legislature;

�� Foster ethical and good governance;

�� Attract, develop and retain skilled and professional staff;

�� Create a conducive working environment for all diverse groups; and

�� Recognise staff contributions, reward their achievements and provide a stimulating environment.

Core Values
We believe in and strive for:

Moral Integrity 	B eing honourable and following ethical principles;

Goal Oriented 	 Working diligently to achieve results;

Team Work 	B eing co-operative and working well with others;

Courtesy 	B eing polite and having respect for individual dignity;

Development 	 Encouraging the achievement of growth, learning and development;

Economy 	B eing responsible and careful in spending;

Excellence 	 Continuous improvement in performance and standards;

Openness 	B eing sincere and candid in discussions;

Participation 	 Involvement of everyone in decision-making processes;

Social Equality 	� No unfair discrimination, directly or indirectly against anyone, on one or more grounds, including 
race, gender, sex, class, pregnancy, marital status, ethnic or social origin, colour, sexual orientation, 
age, disability, religion, conscious belief, culture, language and birth; and

Professionalism 	B eing knowledgeable with a non-partisan positive attitude as well as proficient in executing duties.
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PREAMBLE TO THE CONSTITUTION

“We, the people of South Africa, 

Recognise the injustices of our past; 

Honour those who suffered for justice and freedom in our land; 

Respect those who have worked to build and develop our country; and 

Believe that South Africa belongs to all who live in it, united in our diversity. 

We therefore, through our freely elected representatives, adopt this Constitution as the 
supreme law of the Republic so as to- 

Heal the divisions of the past and establish a society based on democratic values, 
social justice and fundamental human rights; 

Lay the foundations for a democratic and open society in which government is based 
on the will of the people and every citizen is equally protected by law; 

Improve the quality of life of all citizens and free the potential of each person; and 

Build a united and democratic South Africa able to take its rightful place as a 
sovereign state in the family of nations. 

      May God protect our people.

Nkosi Sikelel’ iAfrika.

Morena Boloka setjhaba sa heso.

God seën Suid-Afrika.

God bless South Africa.

Mudzimu fhatutshedza Afurika.

Hosi katekisa Afrika.”
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SECTION I: FOREWORD AND
LEGISLATIVE OVERVIEW



It is an honour to present the Annual Report of the Gauteng 
Provincial Legislature for the financial year 2010/2011 to the 
people of Gauteng. The report covers the period 1 April 2010 
to 31 March 2011. The report is a reflection of our on-going 
performance towards the achievement of our vision to build 
a GPL that is driven by the desire to represent and satisfy the 
political rights of the people of Gauteng. The political rights 
of the people include the right to petition the GPL, the right to 
participate in processes of law-making and oversight, and the 
right to be informed about the decisions of government that 
affect their lives. 

The vision of the GPL is to foster pride and confidence in 
democracy and enhance government’s ability to deliver 
services to the people of Gauteng. During the 2010/2011 
financial year, we have worked tirelessly towards achieving 
this vision. We have improved our interaction with the 

people of Gauteng through our oversight and public partici-
pation flagship project called Bua le Sechaba, a listening 
campaign through which our committees go into an identi-
fied community and convene meetings with all stakeholders, 
namely, the general public; local authorities; public represent-
atives; visit service delivery sites such as hospitals; schools; 
police stations; Multi-Purpose Community Centres (MPCCs), 
etcetera, and thereafter, compile a report on their engage-
ments and findings. These reports form part of the commit-
tees’ quarterly and annual reporting process for tabling and 
debating in the House, and the resolutions have been referred 
to affected departments for implementation. 

Through this approach, the GPL can now claim that it is in 
touch with the people and understands their needs. I wish to 
express my gratitude to the people of the Sedibeng region for 
coming out in their numbers and raising their issues during the 
Bua le Sechaba campaign of the Health and Social Devel-
opment Portfolio Committee.  We will continue to improve 
our on-going interaction with the people of Gauteng through 
this campaign and many other interactive avenues that are 
being explored. We believe that the relationship between 
the GPL and the people of Gauteng will grow from strength 
to strength.

The democratic state, including the GPL, has created many 
platforms and vehicles to encourage people who may be 
disgruntled, to raise their voices and be heard. The Constitu-
tion of the Republic of South Africa, Act No. 108 of 1996, 
(Constitution) guarantees every citizen the right to express 
themselves with regards to the realisation of their interests. 
However, it is disconcerting that a minority in our commu-

nities continue to act outside of the democratic processes, 
by engaging in acts of violence such as burning houses of 
councillors and vandalising state property, using their right to 
demonstrate as an excuse. Whilst the right to demonstrate is 
respected, violent protests amount to criminal activities that 
undermine our hard-won democracy, and this should not be 
tolerated in Gauteng. We encourage the people of Gauteng 
to use the petitions system of the GPL to raise their concerns 
and seek solutions. These processes are available to them to 
communicate with their public representatives. 

There is national consensus that legislatures must improve 
their oversight function over the Executive by ensuring that the 
various government departments account to the people for 
their actions. The GPL is doing well in this regard in that all 
departments now submit their quarterly financial and non-finan-
cial performance reports to the GPL for scrutiny and reporting 

FOREWORD BY THE SPEAKER
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by our committees. In turn, our committees report their findings 
to the House on the performance of the departments. This is an 
important oversight gain in that committees use this reporting 
requirement as early warning signs, and are thus able to 
intervene on time where required. 

The House Standing Rules have been improved in order to 
make the debates more exciting, and to further improve the 
accountability of the Executive. The resolutions that are passed 
in the House increasingly focus on issues of service delivery, 
and indicate the intention of the GPL to improve the quality of 
the services delivered to the people of Gauteng. 

The GPL continues to interact with other parliaments of the world 
by, among others, participating in international bodies such 
as the Commonwealth Parliamentary Association (CPA) and 
the National Council of State Legislatures. There is on-going 
learning and sharing of best practices with other parliaments 
on the continent and beyond. Our oversight methodology, 
Programme Evaluation and Budget Analysis (PEBA), received 
international recognition with more parliaments expressing an 
interest to learn more about it, demonstrating that our pioneer-
ing work in the legislative sector continues to grow locally and 
abroad. 

As a result of this good international relations work, the GPL has 
accepted the invitation to host the CPA Africa Regional Confer-
ence and the Inaugural CPA Africa Regional Youth Parliament 
in 2012. We believe that through these processes, we are 
contributing towards strengthening democracy by participat-
ing in initiatives to create a better Africa and a better world. 
The Speaker of the GPL has been appointed by the National 
Speakers’ Forum to spearhead the development and imple-
mentation of a sector-wide oversight model across all legis-
latures in South Africa. During the 2011/2012 financial year, 
road shows to promote the sector’s oversight model will be 
implemented as part of promoting the model and enabling 
other legislatures to implement it in the 2012/2013 financial 
year. 

As the pioneer in the establishment of the Legislature Services 
Board (LSB) within the sector, we will, in the 2011/2012 
financial year, call for additional nominations for external Board 
members who will serve on our LSB.  The additional external 
members of the LSB will not only add value to our govern-
ance processes, but will position the GPL as a truly transparent 
organisation that conforms to King III Report requirements.  The 
Legislature Services Act (LSA) will also be amended in order 
to align it to the provisions of the Financial Management of 

Gauteng Provincial Legislature Act No. 7 of 2009 (FAMLA).

The implementation of FAMLA will be strengthened through 
an on-going training programme for all stakeholders. This Act 
provides a dynamic opportunity to take a quantum leap in 
improving financial management practices. A major milestone 
of this piece of legislation is the regularisation of a consultative 
process between the Speaker and the MEC for Finance on 
the funding requirements of the GPL. This will ensure that the 
GPL is adequately funded and is effective in implementing its 
strategic plan with the necessary resource allocation. The Act 
also enhances the recognition of the GPL as an autonomous 
organ of state.

Looking ahead, the GPL will focus on consolidating relations 
with Institutions Supporting Democracy (ISD). Great strides 
have been made in our relations with the Public Service 
Commission (PSC); the Auditor-General (AG); the Independ-
ent Electoral Commission (IEC); and the Finance and Fiscal 
Commission (FFC). In addition, we will pursue formal relations 
with the Office of the Public Protector; the Human Rights 
Commission and the Gender Commission. The work of the 
GPL overlaps significantly with the mandate of these Chapter 
9 institutions, and working with them will enable us to be more 
effective, enhancing the execution of our own mandates. 

We will be pursuing relations with Gauteng-based institutions 
of higher learning in our efforts to develop collaboration in 
the areas of research; knowledge development; and manage-
ment. These institutions possess a wealth of information that is 
very useful for our constitutional mandates. We are committed 
to working with, and for the people of Gauteng to create a 
“Better life for all”, and ensuring that Gauteng is a better place 
to live in. Unlike marathon runners who eventually get to the 
finishing line, our commitment as the GPL is to be like sprinters, 
and to sprint in the right direction.

I thank you

Lindiwe Maseko
Speaker of the Gauteng Provincial Legislature
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LEGISLATURE SERVICES BOARD
The Legislature Services Board (LSB) was established in terms 
of the Legislature Service Act No. 5 of 1996. The Board 
of Directors is appointed in terms of section 4(1) of the Act, 
and comprises the Speaker of the GPL who acts as Chair-
person of the Board; the Deputy Speaker; Chairperson of 
Committees; Leader of the Democratic Alliance; Leader of the 
Congress of the People; the Secretary to the Gauteng Provin-
cial Legislature (Secretary); Chairperson of the Audit and 
Risk Committee; and the Chief Financial Officer. To ensure 
its efficient operation, and in compliance with best practice 
and legislative requirement, the Board has appointed a 
Board Secretary to assist the organisation in carrying out its 
mandates on behalf of the Board.

Role and function of the Board of 
Directors 
The LSB is ultimately responsible and accountable for the 
affairs and performance of the GPL and for ensuring the 
sustainability of the institution. The role of the Board includes 
but is not limited to the following:

�� Ensuring that appropriate systems and procedures are 
in place to enable the GPL to conduct its business in an 
honest, ethical and responsible manner; 

�� Ensuring that effective audit, risk management and 
compliance measures are in place; 

�� Reviewing, assessing and guiding management in setting 

group strategy and business plans; 

�� Reviewing and approving strategic plans, policies 
and operating budgets as well as monitoring financial 
performance and expenditure; and 

�� Ensuring accurate, concise, transparent and timely 
reporting. 

The Board executes its responsibilities by delegating authority 
to Board committees and management. The functions of the 
Board committees are described comprehensively in the 
Terms of Reference of these committees. Powers delegated 
to management are prescriptive and controlled through the 
Delegations of Authority to include only limited financial 
decision-making capacity without prior approval by the 
Board.

The following are the committees of the Board:

�� Human Resource Development Committee;

�� Members Affairs Committee;

�� Performance and Remuneration Committee; and

�� Audit and Risk Committee.

Each committee is governed by its own charter, which deter-
mines its Terms of Reference. Meetings of the LSB and its 
committees are on an annual schedule, and the Board is 

LEGISLATIVE OVERVIEW
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Members Affairs 
Committee 

Human Resource 
Development
Committee

Legislature 
Services Board

Audit & Risk 
Committee

Performance & 
Renumeration 

Committee

LEGISLATURE SERVICES BOARD structure
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required to conduct a minimum of 4 meetings per year, plus 
2 special meetings. Committees make recommendations to 
the Board, which is the final decision-making structure on 
policy and strategic issues.

Appointment and Induction of 
Directors 
Board members are the organisation’s key decision-makers, 
and individual competence is therefore essential. In addition 
to their fiduciary duties in protecting GPL’s assets, they must 
act with due diligence and skill, and are therefore, required 
to have a sound understanding of the business, and extensive 
knowledge of the organisation. The members of Board 
committees must have specialist business expertise in respect 
of the obligations assigned to them as mandated in the Terms 
of Reference.

Our directors are appointed on the basis of their proven 
individual track records in business, and wide-ranging 
expertise gained in different fields. In addition, gender 
and race are considered in order to reflect our provincial 
and national demographics. An orientation programme for 
new directors is in place to ensure that they are adequately 
trained, and have the required knowledge of the structure, of 
the institution, operations and policies, to enable them to fulfil 
their fiduciary duties and responsibilities. Continuous empow-
erment sessions on good governance are also part of the 
programme aimed at updating their skills and knowledge. 

Fees for Non-Executive Directors
Only external members (Non-Executive Directors) receive 
a fee for their contribution as members of the Board and 
Board committees. Fee structures are recommended to the 
Board by the Chairperson of the Performance and Remunera-

tion Committee, based on market trends and levels of the 
remuneration of directors. 

The Chairperson of the Board
The following represents the core functions that 
the Chairperson fulfils:

�� The Chairperson manages the Board and provides 
overall leadership and strategic direction;

�� Oversees the adoption of appropriate governance princi-
ples and implementation, at Board meetings, and that 
conflicts of interest are managed properly; and 

�� Ensures that the Board meets at least 6 times per year. 

Board Evaluation
Annually, the Board carries out a self-evaluation process. 
The evaluation focuses on whether the Board is fulfilling 
its mandates as contained in the Board Charter as well as 
examining the Board’s effectiveness. The conclusions from the 
evaluation are reviewed by the Board and, where appropri-
ate, best practice recommendations are made and imple-
mented.

The Board Secretary 
The Board Secretary functions within the ambit of the Public 
Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA), King 
III Report and best practice notes, and provides corporate 
governance advice to the Board and its sub-committees 
including the Secretary to the Legislature. The Board Secretary 
reports and has unrestricted access to the Chairperson of the 
Board and the Chairpersons of all its committees, including 
the Secretary to the Legislature. 

The LSB Sub-Committees comprise the following members:

Performance and Remuneration Committee:	
Lindiwe Maseko: Chairperson, Steward Ngwenya, Lefokane 
Meshoe, Brian Goodall (Non-Executive Member) and Peter 
Skosana (Secretary to the Legislature).

Human Resource Development Committee:	
Steward Ngwenya: Chairperson, Uhuru Moiloa, Siphiwe 
Mgcina, Joyce Pekane, Chwaro Setiloane (Non-Executive 
Member) and Peter Skosana.

Members Affairs Committee:
Steward Ngwenya: Chairperson, Uhuru Moiloa, Valentine 
Mbatha, Brian Hlongwa, Jacqualine Mofokeng, Kenneth 
Batyi, Refilwe Mogale, Lefokane Meshoe, Moses 
Mayekiso, Glenda Steyn, Kate Lorimar, Bonginkosi 
Dhlamini, Rose Gudlhuza, Jaco Mulder and Peter Skosana.     

Audit & Risk Committee:	 John Davis: Non-Executive 
Member – Chairperson, Mike Madlala, Refilwe Letwaba, 
Alwyn Martin (Non-Execute Member) and Peter Skosana.
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The Board Secretary’s functions include the following: 

�� Providing information on legislation relevant to or affecting 
the organisation; 

�� Reporting at any meeting of the Board’s committees on 
any failure to comply with relevant legislation;

�� Ensuring that minutes of all LSB meetings and sub-commit-
tee meetings are properly recorded and resolutions 
communicated;

�� Ensuring that the organisation submits an annual report 
on time;

�� Ensuring that the organisation has systems and processes 
in place to address all corporate governance require-
ments; and 

�� Managing and facilitating the induction of the Board.

Good Corporate Governance
Governance is essentially about effective leadership based 
on an ethical foundation. Compliance takes place within the 
context of strong leadership and sound governance principles.

The LSB ensures that the GPL complies with all applicable 
laws and rules; and adherence to codes and standards. All 
these compliance responsibilities are very onerous, especial-
ly where the state is involved. This is exacerbated by the 
fact that different single provisions in laws, rules, codes and 
standards cannot be read in isolation, but need to be inter-
preted in the context of the entire scope of compliance appli-
cable to the GPL. 

The GPL has strived to ensure its alignment with the PFMA and 
King III Report on principles of good governance and improved 
accountability. In its endeavour to respond to, and prioritise 
financial management, the GPL created a piece of enabling 
legislation for the GPL called the Financial Management of 
Gauteng Provincial Legislature Act No. 7 of 2009 (FAMLA). 

Management of Risk 
The specialist intervention of managing risk is handled by an 
internal audit function that is outsourced by the GPL. In line 
with the PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate Govern-
ance, and FAMLA, internal audit provides the Audit and Risk 
Committee and the GPL management, independent and 
objective assurance that the internal controls are appropriate 
and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk manage-
ment process, as well as the identification of corrective actions 
and suggested enhancement of the controls and processes.

During the year under review, the Board monitored the 
corporate governance review implementation plan based 
on the 10 key risk areas identified for effective corporate 
governance. One of the key strategic projects approved by 
the Board, which is part of building a responsive administra-
tion to the political imperatives, was the Turn-Around Strategy 
which resulted in a new organisational structure of the institu-
tion. The GPL completed a high level risk assessment process, 
which enabled the identification of the Top Ten high level 
material risks to which the institution was exposed, and 
accordingly evaluated the strategy for managing these risks. 
The outcome of this risk assessment was formally document-
ed and approved by the Audit and Risk Committee, and 
subsequently, by the Board. The GPL also developed a Risk 
Register, based on the strategic priorities of the institution. The 
risk register informed the development of the Annual Internal 
Audit Plan, and the risk identification process within all 
streams, including action plans to mitigate such risks. The risk 
register now features as a standard agenda item of the Audit 
and Risk Committee, LSB and senior management meetings.

Financial Management
The FAMLA was signed and promulgated on 2 November 
2009. A task team constituted by the Secretary to the Legis-
lature focused on its implementation. An implementation plan 
has been developed for subsequent recommendation and 
tracking by the Secretariat, and reporting on its progress to 
the Speaker as the Executive Authority and Chairperson of 
the Board. 

The implementation of FAMLA has progressed well in terms of 
the quarterly reporting requirements to the Executive Authority. 
The initial implementation focused on the transitional arrange-
ments as prescribed in Schedule 3 of the Act. Schedule 3 
provides that as an interim measure, the GPL continues to 
comply with the applicable requirements of the PFMA and 
its regulations where necessary. Until new regulations, as 
required by FAMLA, come into effect, any policies, regulations 
or rules concerning the subject matter remain in force.

Delegation of Authority 
The Board has delegated the management of the organisation 
to the Secretary to the Legislature, who functions with assist-
ance from Executive Directors. In delegating these powers, 
the Board has imposed certain restrictions and conditions that 
they believe to be appropriate for the effective exercise of 
such delegated powers. The Board approves the delegation 
of authority annually, whereafter it can be varied or revoked 
as it deems fit. Having delegated power in this manner, the 
Board however still has the ultimate duty to monitor manage-
ment’s performance. 
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Introduction 
The year under review was indeed a memorable year for 
South Africa, with the successful hosting of the 2010 FIFA 
World Cup, a first for the African continent. Whilst the 
euphoria of the Soccer World Cup captured the imagination 
of our nation, and certain business processes slowed down, 
the event did not prevent the GPL and its committees from 
continuing with their role of driving the implementation of the 
GPL’s constitutional mandates of making laws, undertaking 
oversight, facilitating public participation and co-operative 
governanace. This report highlights key achievements in the 
work of the committees during 2010/2011, and sets the tone 
for the 2011/2012 financial year and beyond. 

The GPL has a total of 18 committees composed of Members 
of the Legislature (MPLs). These committees of the GPL are 
divided into portfolio and standing committees.

The committees approached their work in 2010/2011 with 
the mandate to increase oversight of government programmes 
to ensure the answerability of departments, and of the 
Executive, to the legislature, on service delivery and effective 
and efficient use of public resources. 

To this end, the improved implementation of the GPL’s 
oversight methodology, known as the Programme Evaluation 
and Budget Analysis (PEBA), was their main task. Secondly, 
committees were tasked to increase opportunities for the 
people of Gauteng to participate in law-making and oversight 
activities, and to be more visible in the various communities 
by convening their meetings in these communities; listening 
to the needs of the people, and creating mechanisms for 
feedback. 

All committees have undertaken Focused Intervention Studies 
on selected government programmes in order to scrutinise 
whether government programmes are effective, efficient 
and economical, and also to determine whether these 
programmes are making an impact on the quality of life of 
the people of Gauteng.

The Office of the Chairperson of Committees has, in the year 
under review, provided strategic leadership to all the commit-
tees in oversight and law-making, ensured public participa-
tion, managed the internal and external stakeholders, and 
improved interaction and coordination with the National 
Council of Provinces (NCOP).

Committees of the House have however, not co-ordinated 

their work with similar committees in the local government 
sphere effectively, and this weakness was in part as a result 
of variances in the configuration of committees between 
municipal councils and the GPL. There is however, more 
confidence in the unfolding municipal systems, and hopefully, 
this process will result in a complete separation of powers 
and functions between the Executive and Councils, going 
forward. 

Oversight work

The oversight model of the GPL provides for committees to 
scrutinise the work of the departments at various stages, 
namely:

�� The Appropriation Bill stage where departments submit 
their proposed budgets for approval by the GPL;

�� The performance reporting stages where the departments 
submit their quarterly and annual performance reports to 
the GPL; and 

�� Through Focused Intervention Studies.

There has been increased implementation of the oversight 
model in the year under review. The gains are measured by 
the increased resolutions of the House that are focused on 
service delivery, and also improved capacity of the state to 
dispense its constitutional mandates. 

The focus on service delivery issues by our committees is 
an indication that they are doing more to monitor services 
delivered to the people of Gauteng. It is however, worth 
noting that more work is required to measure the satisfaction 
levels of the people in respect of services delivered by the 
respective government departments, and to match these with 
the performance reports from the departments. The imple-
mentation of results-based planning to enhance the GPL’s 
PEBA and the full implementation of the GPL Monitoring and 
Evaluation System will ensure improvement of the evaluation 
of impact of government programmes in Gauteng.

The increased submission of quarterly performance reports 
by departments to the GPL, and the subsequent reporting to 
the House regarding Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) 
departmental submissions, is an indication of the improved 
implementation of our oversight role. 

Increased efforts will be devoted to create sufficient time 

OVERVIEW OF COMMITTEE WORK
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in the GPL’s programme for debate on these performance 
reports. Quarterly reports can serve as early warning signs, 
and are useful for committees to identify potential challeng-
es and the required interventions where appropriate. This 
will require committees to pay sufficient attention to depart-
ments’ efficiencies with regard to the alignment of inputs to 
outputs in order to achieve pre-determined outcomes. The 
outcomes-based mid-term budget cycle of government, and 
the annual performance plans, will assist committees of the 
GPL to exercise more robust oversight in respect of the GPG 
departments. 

In addition, the Office of the Chairperson of Committees 
led by the Leadership and Governance Programme headed 
by the GPL Speaker, has developed committee-specific 
budgets to ensure that chairpersons, working together with 
committee support staff, take more responsibility for ensuring 
that expenditure is based on the Annual Performance Plans 
(APP) of committees, which is informed by the strategic goals 
of Presiding Officers, the strategic plan of Chairpersons of 
Committees and individual committees’ strategic plans. 

The role of the Office of the Chairperson of Committees, 
in collaboration with budget planning in the Office of the 
Chief Financial Officer, is to monitor the expenditure patterns, 
and ensure that committees spend according to their strategic 
plans. This will determine whether the ultimate objectives of 
committees are achieved, that is, an improved evaluation 
of the performance of committees, and how this improve-

ment positively impacts on its oversight work in relation to the 
Executive. It must ultimately answer the question of whether 
government delivery programmes achieve a positive outcome 
and impact on the quality of life of the people of Gauteng.    

Recommendations on the Oversight 
Function
Committees continuously seek ways to improve their oversight 
work, and will in the forthcoming financial year, pursue the 
following: 

�� Improved public participation in committee work to 
enhance oversight work. In this regard, committees will 
be required to convene sector forums wherein organi-
sations of civil society make meaningful inputs into the 
budgets and annual reports of departments. 

�� Develop a procedure for the GPL to amend programmes 
of the government as expected by the Constitution, 
section 119 (3) which states: 

§§ �“A provincial Act must provide for a procedure by 
which the provincial legislature may amend a Money 
Bill.”  This law will give the GPL the power to change 
the budgets of departments when it has been estab-
lished that such budgets will not address the needs of 
the people of Gauteng.

Bill No. Short Title Introduced
in Parliament

Negotiating
Mandate

Final Voting
Mandates

4-2010 Division of Revenue 17/2/ 2010 17/3/2010 24/3/2010

5-2010 Social Assistance 2/3/2010 16/8/2010 24/8/2010

9-2010 Black Authorities Act Repeal 21/4/2010 26/10/2010 2/11/2010

15D-2010 Independent Police Investigative Directorate Bill 12/7/2010 ATC 73 27/10/2010 3/11/2010

16D-2010 Civilian Secretariat For Police Service Bill 12/7/2010 ATC 73 27/10/2010 3/11/2010

15D-2010 Independent Police Investigative Directorate Bill 12/7/2010 ATC 73 27/10/2010 3/11/2010

16D-2010 Civilian Secretariat For Police Service Bill 12/7/2010 ATC 73 27/10/2010 3/11/2010

B26B-2010 Higher Education & Training Laws A/B 27/7/2010 ATC 81 3/11/ 2010 18/11/2010

B35-2010 Division of Revenue A/B 27/10/2010 ATC 133 5/11/2010 10/11/2010

15F-2010 Independent Police Investigative Directorate Bill 
(76) Mediation Committee Amended Bill

12/7/2010 ATC 73
10/3/2011 27/10/2010 3/11/2010

16F-2010 Civilian Secretariat For Police Service Bill 
Mediation Committee Amended Bill

12/7/2010 ATC 73
10/3/2011 27/10/2010 3/11/2010

20B-2010 Sectional Titles Schemes Management Bill 22/7/2010 ATC 29/3/2011 19/4/2011

21B-2010 Community Schemes Ombuds Service Bill 22/7/2010 ATC 29/3/2011 19/4/2011

B4-2011 Division of Revenue Bill 23/2/2011 ATC 18 30/3/2011 6/4/2011

The GPL committees developed mandates for the following NCOP legislation:
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�� Explore relations with information and knowledge 
management institutions with a view to leverage on their 
rich database to support oversight work.

�� In the transition from output-based oversight, to an 
outcomes-based budgeting and performance audit of 
mandates of the GPL, the Auditor-General, and Leader 
of Government Business (LoGB) should meet to agree 
on reporting formats in pursuit of a common goal of 
achieving clean audit reports by 2014. 

Law-making 
We have agreed at the beginning of the 2009 term, that 
we will develop laws that will enable a better life for the 
people of Gauteng. During the year under review, the GPL 
was presented with laws that, through its committees, were 
diligently considered and passed within the stipulated time 
periods. These were laws at provincial and national levels. 

The following provincial laws were passed:

i.	 Provincial Adjustment Act No. 1 of 2011; and

ii.	 Gauteng Scrutiny of Sub-ordinate Legislation Act No. 2 
of 2011; and the 

iii.	 Provincial Appropriation Act No. 3 of 2011.

Recommendations for Law-making 

i.	 Committees are to improve their oversight of the imple-
mentation of laws that are applicable to their portfolios. 
The focus on the implementation of laws will also include 
the scrutiny of sub-ordinate legislation;

ii.	 Committees are to use their oversight work to identify 
legislative gaps, and to subsequently initiate appropriate 
laws that will close such gaps; 

iii.	 Committee Members will be trained on the GPL 
law-making framework; and

iv.	 The GPL must demand the implementation framework for 
the regulation of the funeral services industry with clear 
timeframes when the draft legislation will be presented to 
the House for consideration. 

Co-operative Governance Statement
Committees supported one NCOP Provincial oversight visit, 
and one “Taking Parliament to the People” held in the Free 
State Province during the year under review. There is a need 
to give more thinking to how this programme should develop 
more coherent positions on matters affecting Gauteng, and 

how these should be taken forward to influence the national 
planning processes.

There is a weakness of local government to engage on 
overlapping legislative matters undertaken by the GPL. The 
concern may be issues pertaining to particular co-operative 
governance framework, and a seeming loss of dependence. 
However, it is crucial that these issues are managed as the 
increased participation of local government in GPL legisla-
tive processes could accelerate the resolution of issues like 
unfunded mandates that local municipalities have to deal 
with. During the provincial week of the NCOP, the partici-
pation of the South African Local Government Association 
(SALGA) was however noted, with an agreement that it must 
be sustained and strengthened. 

The Gauteng chapter of SALGA, and the Provincial Presiding 
Officers’ Forum should be co-ordinated to ensure that the 
NCOP legislative agenda reflects service delivery matters 
affecting the Gauteng Province.

Public Participation 
The mandate of committees on its public participation 
function is to seek the views of broad sectors of the people 
of Gauteng, especially the ordinary public and vulnerable 
groups during the various legislative processes. 

During the year under review, the Committee of Health 
and Social Development implemented the Bua le Sechaba 
listening campaign in Sedibeng, where the concerns of 
people on matters of health were heard. Local authorities 
and health officials were held to account to the people on 
the quality of services rendered, and health facilities such as 
hospitals and clinics were visited by the committee for on-site 
monitoring of service delivery. 

The success of this flagship project, which included a 
feedback campaign, has heralded a new era of public partic-
ipation and oversight in the GPL. In addition to the above, 
committees in general continue to invite their stakeholders to 
their meetings, and to also reflect issues raised by the public 
in their reports. The decision by the Portfolio Committee of 
Education to have a similar campaign was postponed due 
to the public service strike, however, this decision will be 
revisited in the 2011/2012 financial year.

The pioneering work of involving people in the GPL’s work is 
intended to ensure that the people inform the policy-making 
processes of the GPL. It is a fact that more works is required 
to refine and expand our public participation processes in 
order to improve its effectiveness.
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Recommendations on public 
participation
Committees will continue to create more opportunities for the 
people of Gauteng to actively participate in processes of 
governance. In this regard, the GPL has revised its Public 
Participation Strategy with a view of focusing on the following:

i.	 Empowering people to participate more meaningful-
ly in the legislative processes through targeted public 
education programmes and production of relevant 
material; 

ii.	 Piloting Sector Forums as a mechanism for facilitating 
the inputs of organised formations in the policy-making 
process of governance; and

iii.	 Implementing additional Sector Parliaments, namely, 
Children’s Parliament; Workers’ Parliament; People with 
Disabilities’ Parliament and Faith-based Formations’ Parlia-
ment. This will be in addition to the existing Women’s, 
Youth’s and Elderly Peoples’ Parliaments. 

GPL Petitions System
The GPL adopted the Gauteng Petitions Act, No. 5 of 2002, 
in line with section 118 of the Constitution. The Act provides 
for any individual or groups to petition the GPL on any matter 
within the legislative authority of the province. During the 
year under review, the province experienced service delivery 
protests in areas such as Diepsloot, Zandspruit, Boiketlong, 
and more attention needs to be paid to our public education 
programme and how the GPL interacts with communities 
to eliminate what, in some instances, develops into violent 
protests and the destruction of public property.

The Office of the Chairperson of Committees is concerned that 
the e-Petitions system of the GPL has not delivered dividends 
in relation to the investment made to implement it. The oppor-
tunity cost of having a system that is not enhancing our public 
participation process may be contributing to lowering public 
confidence. In our efforts to build a participatory and repre-
sentative democracy, more needs to be done in this regard.

Recommendations on the Petitions 
system
The Petitions Committee of the GPL, working with the Public 
Participation and Petitions Unit (PPP) unit should develop strat-
egies to respond to the phenomenon of protests. This interven-
tion should contribute to increased use of the petitions system, 
and a better response to petitions on the part of government 
and its agencies. The GPL will use the e-Petitions system as 
a mechanism to fast-track the submissions of petitions through 
an SMS and e-mail system, among other measures.

Bench-marking
Bench-marking exercises are informed by the GPL Policy on 
Study Tours, conferences and inter-legislature visits. In line 
with policy, all 5 Manifesto Priority Committees had under-
taken the bench-marking exercises. Other committees either 
participated in the international conferences or inter-legisla-
ture visits. All committees have tabled their reports on interna-
tional study tours to the House. 

A review of the Study Tour Policy will, in the next financial 
year, revise the policy to improve the learning and sharing of 
best practices in the legislative sector.

A delegation led by the Chairperson of Committees and the 
Deputy Speaker of the GPL undertook a successful bench-
marking tour to Brazil and Chile to study the application of 
effective monitoring and evaluation of legislatures over the 
Executive, and a report will be tabled soon in the House for 
consideration.

The Deputy Chairperson of Committees led a delegation 
to Australia to explore the committee inquiry process and 
management within the context of oversight. 

Whilst bench-marking is an important element of policy 
development and implementation, more thought needs to be 
given to ensure the effectiveness of the approach taken to 
implement these learning opportunities. The schedule already 
exists pertaining to when a committee can undertake an inter-
national study tour and inter-legislature visits. 

Recommendation on study tours
The GPL should develop an improved mechanism to ensure 
that study tours do not duplicate existing research, and where 
possible, should co-ordinate these through the offices of the 
chairpersons of committees across the country. It is necessary 
to improve co-ordination with other spheres of the state and 
legislatures.

Communication
Through the Office of the Deputy Speaker, the Office of the 
Chairperson of Committees initiated a training programme on 
media and communication in the year under review, to ensure 
increased and more effective communication by chairpersons 
of committees as spokespersons of their respective commit-
tees. The following committees have made progress in this 
regard: Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA); 
Gender, Youth and People with Disabilities (GEYODI); Health 
and Social Development; Local Government and Housing; 
and Petitions. There is still much to be done to ensure that all 
the chairpersons are indeed spokespersons of their commit-
tees. 
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Conclusion
The Speaker congratulates the Office of the Chairperson of 
Committees and Members of committees for their sterling 
work during the year under review. The report demonstrates 
the GPL’s resolve and commitment to be an activist legisla-
ture that continues to represent the interests and views of the 
people of Gauteng. 

There has indeed been an improvement with regard to 
committee reports, and in the work of support staff within 
different committees, and this has to be acknowledged. 
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SECTION II: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY BY THE SECRETARY
 TO THE  GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE



Introduction
The Annual Report for the financial year, 2010/2011, 
represents work in progress towards the implementation 
of the Strategic Plan, 2009/2014.  The report reflects the 
on-going work undertaken by both MPLs and the staff to 
create an activist legislature that is responsive to the needs 
of the people  of Gauteng.  We note that the year under 
review was the most memorable for many South Africans 
because of the successful hosting of the 2010 FIFA World 
Cup.  The event demonstrated the capacity of South Africa 
to successfully host international events.

The 2010 FIFA World Cup highlighted the importance of 
sport in nation-building. The work of the GPL continued 
without hindrance, amidst the hype and festivities of the 
event. In addition, the report indicates increased public 
participation in our legislative processes as a result of 
concerted efforts to make the GPL accessible to the people 
of Gauteng.  The report indicates an increase in oversight in 
the work of the Executive, supported by House Resolutions 
that sought to improve the quality of services delivered to 
the people of Gauteng. 

Lastly, the report shows the need to improve our law-making 
processes, and in particular, the need for MPLs, to initiate 
laws and to ensure that all laws passed by the GPL are 
geared towards the enablement of improved livelihoods of 
the people of Gauteng. 

Oversight and Scrutiny
During the year under review, the GPL focussed on increas-
ing the implementation of PEBA by all committees. To this 
end, the following achievements have been recorded: 

�� All committees considered and reported on the quarterly 
performance of departments; 

�� More resolutions of the House were focussed on service 
delivery issues; and

�� More committees undertook oversight visits to service 
delivery sites, such as roads, hospitals and schools.  

As a result of these concerted efforts to implement our 
oversight responsibilities, there has been an equally 
increased accountability by departments and MECs.  The 
oversight work of the GPL will continue to improve as we 
implement the Committee Inquiries and the revised Standing 
Rules. 

Public Participation
The GPL is constituted by elected representatives of the 
people of Gauteng, and its primary responsibility, is to work 
towards fulfilling the aspirations of the voters.  In response to 
the expectations of the people of Gauteng, the GPL success-
fully rolled out the Bua le Sechaba listening campaign in 
Sedibeng.  Through this listening campaign, concerns and 
issues of people were taken up by their elected representa-
tives, and raised in the House during debates. In this way, 
we can truly claim that we represent the interests of people, 
thus, implementing our motto, “Your View - Our Vision”. 
We have ensured that the participation of the people of 
Gauteng in our oversight and law-making processes was 
meaningful. To this extent, committee reports highlight issues 
raised by the people.

The GPL also implemented Sector Parliaments for various 
vulnerable groups, such as Youth and Women. The resolu-
tions of Sector Parliaments are referred to our committees 
for reporting and debating in the House.  In this regard, 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
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House resolutions are crafted to address the various issues 
and concerns raised by people in all public participation 
processes.  As we continue to improve access to the institu-
tion  by vulnerable groups, we are resolute in our commit-
ment to seek additional mechanisms to increase the voice of 
the peole.  For example, in 2012, we plan  to pilot  Sector 
Forums, as well as increase our public education capabili-
ties as part of empowering the people of Gauteng.

Law-making
As part of our efforts to improve law-making in the province, 
we have commissioned research on the Socio-Economic 
Impact of Laws Passed Since 1994. There port is expected 
to provide an indication of the efficacy of the laws passed.  
All our committees convened public hearings,  allowing 
the people of Gauteng to participate in our law-making 
processes. We  are embarking on a campaign to empower 
MPLs to initiate new laws.  This campaign is aimed at 
ensuring that we continue to respond to the needs of the 
people with legislation that empower them and enable 
them to improve their lives.

Stakeholder Management
National and Provincial Speakers Forums
The GPL participated actively in SALSA, and has been 
appointed by the sector to develop and lead the implemen-
tation of the Sector Oversight Model. Our staff members 
participate in various forums, such as the Committee Staff 
Forum; Knowledge Management Forum; Legal Advisors 
Forum; Public Participation Forum; Table Staff Forum; 
CFO Forum; ICT Forum; and the Monitoring and Evalua-
tion Forum.  The aim in such participation is to exchange 
best practices and serves as a conduit for a learning and 
knowledge building process. 

The GPL continues to host dignitaries, other legislatures, 
and researchers who are keen to learn about our oversight 
methodology.  In the year under review, we have hosted 
regional; national; and international visitors from China; 
USA; and other African countries. We have also embarked 
on study tours to other countries to learn about long-term 
planning; monitoring and evaluation; and committee 
inquiries. We have participated in international conferences 
where our researchers presented papers on topical issues.

Our work on stakeholder management will increase in the 
coming years to include establishing relationships with Insti-

tutions Supporting Democracy (ISDs); institutions of higher 
learning; and business organisations. Partnerships with 
these institutions will enhance the capacity of the GPL  to 
implement its mandates.  

Revenue Generating Strategy
In trying to supplement our budget, the Secretariat approved 
the Revenue Generating Strategy to enable the GPL to 
generate additional revenue. 

�� The City Hall has been hired out to the public;

�� The parking bays in Harry Hoffmeyr parking have been 
leased; 

�� The building has been hired out to movie and advertising 
production agencies;

�� Mondi Paper Recycling has also been appointed to 
collect waste papers. 

Leadership and Organisational 
Development 
The GPL is dedicated to fostering Members and staff’s skills 
development.. We trained all levels of management on 
leadership principles as part of preparing for the implemen-
tation of the GPL leadership programme.  We also assessed 
the impact of the GPL Turn-Around Strategy with the view of 
improving systems, processes and policies of the GPL as a 
learning organisation.

We have rolled out FAMLA in pursuance of improved 
financial management practices. Through this process, 
every official is accountable for applying financial and 
risk management in their area of responsibility.  A major 
milestone of this legislation is the regulation of a consulta-
tive process between the Speaker and the MEC for Finance 
on the funding requirements of the institution. This will ensure 
that the GPL is adequately funded to fully implement its 
strategic plan with the necessary base line allocation.  
FAMLA also enhances recognition of the GPL as an autono-
mous organ of state.  The effect of FAMLA will have marked 
results in Financial Management Policy, making the GPL a 
leader in the legislative sector in terms of financial reforms. 
The legislative framework reflects the world’s best practice 
in financial management.
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We have adopted a Collaboration Strategy which provides 
for all units of the GPL to work in an integrated manner 
towards supporting the House and its committees. We 
have commissioned internal capacity to learn and share 
best practices on M and E for the implementation of our M 
and E framework.  We believe all of the above initiatives 
will enhance our capacity to provide an effective service to 
MPLs, enabling improved service delivery to the people of 
Gauteng.

Financial Management
The adopted Risk Management Strategy provided a 
framework for governing and managing the affairs of the 
GPL to identify; manage; control; reduce; and eliminate 
business; financial; and operational risks that may affect 
the performance of the GPL adversely. The strategy is 
further used to direct internal audit efforts and priority, and 
to determine the skills required of managers and staff to 
improve controls and to manage these risks.

Aligned to the Risk Management Strategy, the GPL 
conducted a strategic risk assessment session for the 
2010/2011 period, and subsequently the Top Ten strategic 
risks were identified and strategies were developed for 
implementation to mitigate the risks identified. Progress was 
monitored on a monthly basis and reported to the Audit & 
Risk Committee on a quarterly basis.

The Internal Audit function of the GPL continued to operate 
in line with the approved terms of reference and associ-
ated service level agreement, based on the requirements of  
FAMLA, and the standards for the Professional Practice of 
the Institute of Internal Auditors..

Internal audits were performed on critical risk areas as 
reflected on the approved internal audit coverage plan, to 
determine the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
controls. The outcome of the internal audit reviews was 
regularly reported to Management; Risk Management 
Committee; and the Audit & Risk Committee in terms of 
the Internal Audit Charter and associated service level 
agreement.

The Fraud Prevention Committee took responsibility for the 
implementation of the Fraud Prevention plan within the GPL. 
Comprehensive progress has also been made on the imple-
mentation strategy of the Fraud Prevention plan. To introduce 
the new fraud reporting hot line, a fraud awareness workshop 

was also held at the end of the 2010/2011 financial year. 
The GPL staff was encouraged to utilise the fraud hotline in 
reporting fraud.  Further workshops are planned for the new 
financial year.

The Office of the Auditor-General has executed the 
2010/2011 audit in terms of the approved Audit Strategy. 
The audit was finalised during July 2011 and the GPL 
received an unqualified audit opinion with no matters 
reported.

Human Resource Management
In the year under review, the GPL had a staff complement 
of 341, comprising 194 women and 147 men. There are 5 
women in senior management;  constituting 45% of senior 
management; and 35% in middle management. There were 
5 people living with disability which constituted 1.46% 
of the staff complement. Two-hundred-and-thirteen staff 
members were trained. The total cost of training was R1 
806, 402.31.

Concluding Remarks
Whereas significant progress has been attained, we have 
no illusion regarding the amount of work that lies ahead.  
As an organisation that represents the aspirations and 
needs of the people of Gauteng, our responsibility goes 
beyond advocating on their behalf. We are charged with 
the responsibility of effectively reducing poverty, improving 
access to quality health services and education, creating 
safe communities where the children are protected and job 
opportunities are created for the youth of the province.

The above tasks require us to continue improving our 
work towards achieving the constitutional mandates of 
law-making, oversight and public participation.

VRP SKOSANA
SECRETARY TO THE LEGISLATURE

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
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SECTION III: PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INFORMATION (Non-financial reporting)



�� Implementation of PEBA;

�� Implementation of the ministerial accountability;

�� Strategic co-ordination of the GPL’s interaction in the 
NCOP;

�� Provision of effective and efficient services to MPLs;

�� Training and development programme for MPLs to effec-
tively carry out the mandates of the GPL;

�� Functioning of the Office of the Integrity Commissioner;

�� Performance assessment of senior management;

�� Response to public policy issues; and 

�� Strengthening relations with political parties, MPLs and 
the Executive.

3. Measurable Objectives

�� To provide policy direction to the institution; 

�� To ensure effective and efficient functioning of the LSB;

�� To ensure the development and implementation of the 
institutional strategy and budget plan;

�� To ensure the development and implementation of the 
institutional strategy and budget plan;

�� To oversee the effective implementation of the recommen-
dations of the PEBA efficacy study;

�� To ensure the implementation of Fixed Term Performance 
Management System;

�� To develop and implement the M & E Framework to 
support the political mandates;

�� To improve and build on the best practices of the GPL 
through bench-marking and liaisons with national and  
international bodies that are relevant to the legislative 
sector;

�� To adopt a guideline to ensure best practices;

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Leadership and Governance Programme 
is to provide strategic direction and leadership to the insti-
tution to ensure the execution of its obligations, as well as 
to build relations and partnerships with other parliamenta-
ry institutions, legislatures and other spheres of government. 
Programme 1 provides strategic leadership to the Legislative 
Services Board (LSB), Presiding Officers and Office Bearers 
to ensure delivery of political mandates. 

2. Key Functions
The key function of the Leadership and Governance 
Programme is to manage and co-ordinate the:

�� Development and implementation of the institutional 
strategy and budget;

�� Development and implementation of the legislative 
programme;

�� Optimal functioning of the House;

�� Review and implementation of Standing Rules;

�� Optimal functioning of the LSB;

�� Development and maintenance of inter-institution-
al relations and partnerships as well as facilitation of 
co-operative governance;

�� Promotion of nation building and good governance;

�� Mobilisation of diverse societies in an all-embracing 
effort to build a sense of shared destiny and common 
citizenship;

�� Mobilisation of civil society to participate in the GPL 
through public participation programmes;

�� Participatory law-making process and effective oversight 
and governance of the province;

�� Strategic management of committees and programmes;

�� Political management of the Committee of Chairpersons 
and committees;

�� Implementation of Committee Inquiries;

Programme 1: 
Leadership and Governance
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Commonwealth Parliamentary Association (CPA) and the 
CWP Forums; and

�� A presentation of the GPL Oversight Model to the 
National Speaker Forum attended by the EU. 

As part of implementing the Inter-Institutional Relations Strategy 
which is aimed at information and knowledge sharing, the 
office participated in the following: 

�� The National Conference of State Legislatures (NCSL) in 
Kentucky, USA;

�� Undertook a Study Tour to China, Beijing to understudy 
the Chinese Growth and Development plan with a view 
of understanding the Legislative Responsibility on vision 
2055; 

�� Presiding Officers and MPLs participated in the 41st CPA 
Africa Regional Conference – Nelspruit, Mpumalanga.

�� Presiding Officers participated in the CPA international 
conference in Kenya.

�� The office hosted a number of dignitaries, special visitors 
and delegations during the year under review as follows: 

§§ A delegation from Imo State – Nigeria;

§§ A delegatoin from Kyunggi, South Korea;

§§ A delegation of parliamentarians from Uganda;

§§ NCSL delegation of women Legislators; 

§§ A delegation from the NCSL, USA; and

§§ CPA Secretariat. 

Five (5) Committees undertook international 
study tours as follows: 

§§ Health and Social Development; 

§§ Agriculture and Rural Development;

§§ Education;

§§ Economic Development; and 

�� To ensure best practices and impact on the GPL to be 
provided;

�� To ensure learning and sharing knowledge with other 
legislatures and relevant institutions; and

�� To ensure stakeholder management.

4. Summary Of Achievements
The Programme led planning processes of the institution 
resulting in the revision of the vision; mission; strategic objec-
tives and values of the GPL. This reconfirmed the institution’s 
alignment to its constitutional mandates. The Speaker’s Budget 
Council was established during the year under review, in an 
effort to strengthen political leadership and management of 
all legislative processes. The Speaker’s Budget Council further 
ensured that the budget is allocated in line with priorities as 
set out in the institution’s annual performance plan. The Office 
of the Speaker led the programming of GPL business, resulting 
in the seamless co-ordination of oversight; law-making; public 
participation; and co-operative governance functions. As part 
of strengthening procedural services, the office commissioned 
and led the process of reviewing and adopting revised rules.

In an endeavour to uphold corporate governance in the insti-
tution, the LSB and its sub-committees conducted a study on 
the effectiveness of the LSB operations. The enhancement 
of administrative services; audit; risk; and financial manage-
ment was ensured. The Members Affairs Committee led the 
review and adoption of the Study Tour Policy to enhance good 
governance in relation to inter-institutional visits. The Human 
Resource Development (HRD) sub-committee steered the evalu-
ation of the implementation of the HRD Strategy. The institu-
tion continued to play a leading role in the legislative sector 
nationally. As part of sharing knowledge and best practices, 
as well as profiling the GPL, the Speaker presented a number 
of papers and lectures:

�� Harvard University, Harvard Training Institute Govern-
ment Planning, Policy Development and Implementation 
Conference, 2010;

�� Imo State House of Assembly, Nigeria, West Africa 
– Public lecture on the oversight function of the 
GPL,Prospects and Challenges 11 June 2010; 

�� South Africa, National Parliament – Presentation on 
the participation of Parliament and legislatures in the 

Programme 1: 
Leadership and Governance
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§§ Community Safety. 

Four (4) Committees undertook international 
conferences as follows:

§§ �Housing and Local Government (The International 
Social Housing Summit);

§§ �Infrastructure Development (International Conference 
on Construction and Project Management);

§§ �Public Accounts (Southern African Development 
Communities of Public Accounts Annual Conference); 
and

§§ �Transport and Roads (3rd International Conference of 
Public Transport Financing).

The Office of the Speaker took the initiative to make a submis-
sion to the Seriti Commission on the improvement of benefits 
and remuneration of Public Office Bearers. 

In promoting good governance and social responsibility, the 
Office of the Speaker implemented the following projects: 

�� The Speaker made a presentation to the IEC on the 
proposal on the number of seats for the GPL.

�� The renovation of the Bombani home for abused women 
and children in partnership with Dimension Data;

�� The office, together with the Chinese Consular-Gener-
al and Hi-Sense, embarked on a social responsibility 
project in the Thabo Mbeki village, where 300 destitute 
families were provided food parcels;

�� An amount of R15,000,00 was donated to Kwena 
Molapo high school, as well as a flat screen TV, DVD 
player and soccer balls; 

�� A further  R15,000,00 has been set aside by Hi-Sense 
as a bursary for the best performing student; 

�� CPA Executive Committee (EXCO) meetings were held;

�� CWP EXCO meetings were held;

�� Chairpersons committee meetings were held; 

�� Provided political direction and co-ordinated the partici-
pation of MPLs, MECs including NCOP Members in the 
NCOP week; 

�� Contributed to the successful implementation of the Bua 
le Sechaba campaign for the Health and Social Devel-
opment Committee; 

�� Finalisation of the performance assessment of the 
Secretary to the Legislature; and

�� Staff meetings were held.

5. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
The Programme reflects actual expenditure of R18.5million 
against an adjusted appropriation of R20.4million. The 
programme realised savings to the value of R1.8million due 
to the implementation of  cost containment measures, such as 
the reduction in the utilisation of consultants and newspaper 
subscriptions.

Programme 1: 
Leadership and Governance
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1. Purpose
The purpose of the Office of the Secretary is to serve as 
the custodian of the development and implementation of the 
GPL strategy, and to provide administrative leadership with 
service delivery as a key output on all LSB directives. The 
office is also responsible for monitoring the administration 
of the effective and efficient management of law-making, 
oversight, public participation and corporate governance.

2. Key FunctionS
The Office of the Secretary is charged with delivering on 
all LSB directives, therefore in terms of our business model, 
we have to ensure the effective management of the service, 
strategic planning, implementation, monitoring, reporting and 
evaluation. We also report and respond to issues raised by 
Oversight Committees with respect to the legislature. This 
responsibility includes, being accountable for good practice in 
financial management, human capital development, provision 
of support to MPLs and political parties. In addition, oversee-
ing the legislative business management and co-ordination; 
providing contract management; development and manage-
ment of the institutional calendar; co-ordination and monitoring 
of institutional meetings, and managing donor funding.

3. Measurable Objectives

�� To monitor and Evaluate the efficacy of the GPL service 
on oversight, public participation, co-operative governance 
and law-making;

�� To implement FAMLA;

�� To implement the Institutional Leadership Model;

�� To improve decision-making processes of the GPL;

�� To implement the approved contract management 
framework;

�� To implement the  GPL Turn-Around Strategy;

�� To develop the Inter-Institutional Relations Strategy;

�� To improve the results of stakeholder satisfaction survey; and

�� To support the successful completion of the efficacy of laws 
project.

4. Summary Of Achievements
The Office of the Secretary led the process of the revision of 
measurable objectives in the strategic plan of the GPL. The 
measurable objectives were revised in January 2011, to look 
at progress in relation to targets for the 2011/2012 financial 
year.  The objective of this exercise was to identify activities 
that could not be implemented, and institute corrective action.  

The office processed and approved the GPL strategic plan 
and budget allocation to ensure appropriate resourcing of 
planned activities. Salary negotiations were also finalised 
with the representative union in the GPL for salary increases 
that were implemented in the year under review. A continued 
healthy working relationship with the representative union was 
ensured in line with the Recognition Agreement. 

The GPL Collaboration Framework was adopted and piloted 
in the year under review, ensuring enhanced collaboration of 
all relevant support services to the House and its committees. 
This led to committee and House support being approached 
with project management principles.  The Inter-Institutional 
Relations Strategy; the Public Participation Strategy; the Leader-
ship Model; as well as the Pay Progression Framework were 
adopted during the year under review.

A total of 17 policies were processed by the Office of the 
Secretary, leading to the adoption of 8 policies by the 
Secretary and the Speaker, respectively. The remaining 
policies will be considered for approval in the 2011/2012 
financial year.  Continued performance was ensured through 
consistent Secretariat meetings where quarterly performance 
assessments were used as tools to monitor and measure 
performance, and deviations were corrected. The Secretariat 
continued to manage institutional risks, by so-doing, minimis-
ing the GPL’s risk exposure. This was done through the Audit 
and Risk Committee. Leadership of the service was cascaded 
to operational units of the institution through meetings of the 
Extended Secretariat and the Planning Commission.

Improvement in the quality of reports to the LSB and its 
sub-committees was achieved, and this was associated with 
improvement in the functioning of sub-committees of the Secre-
tariat, such as the Events Co-ordinating Committee, and Policy 
Committee.  The year under review saw the finalisation of the 
due diligence exercise on FAMLA, and a report was submitted 
to the Secretary for consideration in preparation for the imple-
mentation of FAMLA in the GPL.

The final approval of the Inter-Institutional Relations Strategy 
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of the GPL was secured. This strategy will guide the GPL on 
matters relating to external stakeholders.  As indicated earlier, 
approval of the GPL Leadership Model was achieved, and 
with this model, leadership practices will be enhanced in the 
GPL, where appropriately trained managers will live a leader-
ship culture that unleashes the potential of GPL staff, enabling 
efficient delivery on priorities. 

The GPL also developed and approved the Monitoring and 
Evaluation Strategy, with a view to ensuring the effective 
monitoring and evaluation of institutional performance. This 
process has already started to realise benefits in relation to the 
review of institutional planning processes. An M and E semi-

close-out report was presented to the Secretary to the Legisla-
ture, Presiding Officers, Chairpersons of Committees’ review 
session and the Secretariat.

5. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
The Programme reflects actual expenditure of R8.3million 
against an adjusted appropriation of R11.9million. The 
programme incurred an under-expenditure to the value of 
R3.6million, which  is mainly attributable to the positions 
that were reviewed. Furthermore, this programme incurred 
a significant under-spending on travel and accommodation 
due to the 2010 FIFA World Cup.
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Office of the Executive Director

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Corporate Support Services Stream is to be 
a catalyst for service provision to our primary stakeholders MPLs, 
by deploying systems; processes; policies; people; technologies; 
infrastructure; and instituting an enabling environment necessary 
for the effective and efficient functioning of the GPL.

2. Key FunctionS
The mandate of the Corporate Support Stream is to provide 
dedicated, seamless, and professional support services to all 
stakeholders of the GPL in order for our primary stakeholders 
MPLs to execute their Constitutional and legislative mandates. The 
stream provides support in the areas of Human Resources; ICT; 
Security; Building; and Administration. The services are provided 
by the following 3 directorates in the stream:

Members Affairs Directorate (MA): The directorate 
consists of 2 units, that is, the Member’s Relations and Member’s 
Facilities 

Units which provide MPLs with:

�� Facilities and services on training and development; 

�� Co-ordination of remuneration and employee benefits; 

�� Administration of  personnel records;

�� Industrial relations matters; and 

�� Employee assistance programmes in compliance with legis-
lation regulating the relationship between the GPL and its 
employees.

Furthermore, to manage MPLs’ facilities and promote corporate 
governance through policy development initiatives, process 
enhancements, development of skills for MPLs and improved 
management of party caucuses, improvement and co-ordina-
tion of service delivery areas and introduction of sustainable 
programmes aimed at ensuring that MPLs are best equipped 
to fulfil their constitutional obligations. The directorate supports 
the function of the MPLs and parties of the legislature through 
professional; effective and efficient human resources and finance 
management systems; effective budgetary control as the key 
cornerstone, to strengthen the accountability of Party Whips for 
expenditure, overseeing the prudent use of resources.

Programme 3: Corporate Support 
Services

Institutional Support Services (ISS): The directorate 
consists of 2 units, that is, Human Resources, and Administra-
tion. The directorate provides services in the area of human 
resources (HR) and administration, which includes implementing 
human capital practices through the recruitment and retention of 
the best talent; training and development of talent; remuneration 
and rewarding of talent; performance management of talent; 
and providing excellent HR administrative services; professional 
administrative support services; including, transport management; 
telecommunications management; switchboard services; canteen 
and coffee bar services; cleaning services; decor management; 
hygiene services and art curatorship.  

Operational Support Services (OSS): The directorate 
consists of 3 units, that is, Building and Maintenance; Safety, 
Health and Security; and the ICT Units. Services provided by the 
directorate include providing a platform for technology through 
Information Technology (IT), audio and video facilities; infrastruc-
ture for  business solutions; security; health; wellness and safety of 
MPLs and staff.

3. Measurable Objectives

�� To ensure that there is effective strategic planning for the 
directorate;

�� To apply an effective system of monitoring expenditure 
against budget;

�� To create and sustain a culture of compliance and 
promote adherence to sound corporate practices;

�� To create and sustain compliance processes and ensure 
that effective and efficient risk management practices are 
implemented;

�� To ensure that there is effective oversight of Human 
Resources and Administration Units;

�� To ensure effective Human Capital Management;

�� To provide strategic leadership for all strategic projects in 
the ISS Directorate;

�� To ensure that the business requirements are accounted 
for in IT through the management of the SAP system;

�� To ensure that there is a harmonious relationship between 
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the GPL and its employees by developing a strategy for 
salary negotiations and negotiating salary increases 
with the union;

�� �To foster and create a sound working relationship 
between Management and the union;

�� �To ensure effective management of Labour Relations;

�� To ensure that retirement benefits of the GPL employees 
are secured;

�� �To resource the institution with appropriate skills;

�� �To attract the best talent for the GPL;

�� To conduct exit interviews for all staff leaving the employ 
of the GPL (excluding political staff);

�� To establish a strategic HR partnership with line through 
dedicated HR support to business streams;

�� To establish GPL as a fair and transformed institution;

�� �To enhance the institutional performance through the 
following:

§§ �Development of an enhanced IPMS policy and 
Performance Correction Policy; 

§§ �To enhance the institutional performance through 
training of staff;

�� To ensure proper implementation of the IPMS system;

�� To retain and attract the best talent and performers in 
the GPL;

�� To enhance GPL’s competence through a designed, 
developed and implemented Learning and Development 
Strategy and Framework;

�� To implement a competitive remuneration system;

�� To enhance the physical, emotional, personal and 
financial well-being of GPL employees;

�� To implement best practice human resources value chain 
able to deliver the human performance required by the 

GPL to meet its strategic goals and operational require-
ment;

�� To ensure effective management of HR administration;

�� To provide the institution with adequate transport and 
logistical support;

�� To maintain all GPL vehicles as per policy;

�� To ensure that GPL assets are safeguarded and accounted 
for; 

�� To improve the working environment by office furniture in 
all GPL venues and offices in line with policy;

�� To provide support to stakeholders through the provision-
ing of landline and mobile telecommunication facilities 
(Switchboard and Telephone facilities);

�� To provide venue, cleaning and hygiene services; 

�� To ensure a sound governance framework and best 
practice administration processes by revising all admin-
istration policies;

�� To provide world-class customer service in line with insti-
tutional policies; 

�� To provide Mail Room and courier services; 

�� To provide canteen and coffee bar facilities;

�� To remder insurance services; 

�� To establish a panel of transport service providers;

�� To provide stationery and consumables; 

�� To improve safety and security in the GPL;

�� To provide protection services;

�� To facilitate safety and security in events venues; 

�� To render risk management through vetting of staff and 
contractors; 

�� To ensure proper detection of fire in the building and 

Programme 3: Corporate Support 
Services
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compliance with the South African National Standards 
(SANS) 1400, and National Building Regulations and 
Standards Act 103 1977;

�� To ensure risk management and compliance with 
OHASA;

�� To ensure risk management and compliance with the 
Occupation Compensation of Injuries and Disease Act 
(COIDA);

�� To provide parking facilities at GPL; 

�� To provide wellness opportunities programme (including 
gym / fitness centre utilisation);

�� To refurbish the 3rd and 4th floors in the west wing of the 
main building;

�� To renovate the Mayivuke room in the City Hall;

�� To renovate the auditorium in the main building;

�� To provide adequate office and meeting room space;

�� To develop long-term capital project plans, focusing on 
the improvement of the GPL building for sustainability 
purposes;

�� To provide fully maintained, hygienic, safe and secure 
offices in the east and west wings of the GPL; 

�� To develop a concept for the restoration of the organ to 
orchestral playing standard;

�� To examine available external office space for the GPL to 
occupy in the event of a disaster;

�� To develop a culture and conducive environment for 
effective service delivery through sound partnerships with 
stakeholders groups; 

�� To provide a network structure and business applica-
tions in alignment with the OD and designed in ICT best 
practice and standards; 

�� To improve business processes, procedures and policies 
to ensure optimum operational efficiency;

�� To ensure effective and efficient ERP platform;

�� To ensure that technical services are provided in the 
House and Committee business;

�� To ensure stakeholder management;

�� To ensure Network availability;

�� To ensure basic support for both SAP and R3 systems 
landscape efficiency in operations from all business 
streams;

�� To provide hardware infrastructure to support the network 
backbone and business systems;

�� To ensure financial management;

�� To train Members about the GPL; 

�� To review MPLs policy frameworks to ensure relevance;

�� To train political support staff;

�� To enhance institutional performance by conducting 
performance reviews;

�� To develop and maintain a system of good record 
keeping and management of MPLs and party support 
staff archives; 

�� To benchmark legislative business practices locally and 
internationally to ensure the best practices at GPL;

�� To build relationships with primary stakeholders (MPLs) to 
ensure continuous support to Party Leaders; 

�� To ensure that effective and efficient audit management 
practices are implemented; 

�� To compile and maintain a database of MPLs biographi-
cal data; 

�� To co-ordinate arrangements for approved study tours; 

�� To co-ordinate the GPL corporate social responsibility;

�� To measure service level using the Service Charter;

Programme 3: Corporate Support 
Services
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�� To monitor and evaluate service reports;

�� To facilitate the sports and recreation programme; and

�� To facilitate and manage institutional stakeholder surveys.

4. Summary Of Achievements
The following is a summary of the key overall performance of 
the stream in line with the balanced scorecard approach. The 
summary will focus on what the Office of the Executive Director 
(ED) facilitated:

Budget management: The stream is generally in line 
with its allocated budget expenditure and reflected close to 
93% expenditure.

Risk and Audit matters: The stream developed its 
own risk and audit tracking tables for continuous evaluation 
reflected in the body of this report. The management has 
regular meetings every Friday on risk matters. An audit and 
risk task tracking register has been developed. The Policy 
Committee looked at its biggest risks during a meeting on 
16 and 17 March 2011 and developed action plans for the 
Committee to mitigate risks. The following audit areas were 
contained in the stream,t and engagement with the internal 
auditors were held regularly:

�� Asset management;

�� Venue management;

�� Fleet management;

�� Telephone management;

�� Systems Applications Processes (SAP); and

�� IT audit.

Sub-committee of Secretariat: Policy Committee: 
The Policy Committee held 10 meetings during the reporting 
period and an extensive two-day meeting on 16 and 17 
March 2011. The following milestones were achieved:

�� Composition of the Policy Committee was revised;

�� �An Office Manager and Senior Co-ordinator were 
appointed in the Office of the Executive Director;

�� Policy process and manual were revised;

�� �Stakeholders were consulted on the policies and a 
submissions and feedback register was developed;

�� �The terms of reference for the Policy Committee were 
revised and adopted by the Secretariat;

�� �A policy list was developed reflecting all policies in 
the GPL. This list will be updated by sourcing the said 
policies; location thereof and status of the policies;

�� �A Decisions Register for all policies, capturing the history 
on amendments made to the policies was developed 
and will serve as a historic knowledge and information 
base on new policies;

�� �The new policies of integrated mobile tools and landline 
telephone policy and a talent attraction policy were 
adopted by the Policy Committee and is planned for 
presentation to the Secretariat and then to sub-commit-
tees of the Board; 

�� �Twenty-two policies were approved during the reporting 
period and submitted for final sign-off and implementa-
tion in the 2011/2012 financial year; and

�� �A central repository for policies was created on the 
G-drive, R-drive and the Intranet.

Stream management of performance: The Office 
of the ED facilitated regular meetings with Directors and 
Managers to manage performance. Four divisional (with 
Directors) meetings and 2 quarterly review sessions were held 
with all Managers. Regular ad-hoc meetings were held with 
teams in the stream on projects, audits and service delivery 
challenges. Performance and service delivery meetings with 
key risk units were held regularly during the reporting period 
and minutes and tracking has been implemented for team 
excellence.

GPL Opening February 2011: During the preparations 
for the official Opening of the GPL, thorough preparations 
were made by the stream. The Office of the ED facilitat-
ed several meetings with the Corporate Support Stream, 3 
in total to deal with readiness and challenges experienced 
as well as unblocking challenges. A reflection was made 
on stakeholders’ views in the last two openings as well as 
Events Co-ordinating Committee (ECC) evaluation reports of 
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the last two openings. The Opening went seamless from the 
Corporate Support side and stakeholders commended the 
team. 

Co-ordination processes: The stream is co-ordinating 
its activities and programme in line with its performance plan 
in the form of a stream calendar aligned to the institutional 
calendar. 

Input into reporting processes: The stream inputs into 
the reporting processes by:

�� Updating the Risk Register regularly;

�� �Engaging with the Risk Accountant as a very important 
partner to the business of the stream; and

�� �Reporting on policies to Secretariat, sub-committees of 
the Board (specifically MA and HRD) and the LSB.

Reporting to Committees of the House: The stream 
submitted responses on resolutions related to quarterly report 
questions to the GEYODI and Oversight Committee on the 
Premier’s Office and the Legislature (OCPOL) Committees as 
requested. Continuous tracking of responses required by the 
Oversight Committees is done through a task tracking register 
of the stream.

Support to sub-committees of the Board: The 
stream supported the HRD and Members Affairs commit-
tees of the Board and during the period under review, 5 
Members Affairs Committee meetings and 2 HRD meetings 
were held. The Office of the ED provided additional minute-
taking capacity to the Office of the Speaker and to the 
Members Affairs Committee.

Filling of vacancies: Fifty-six positions were filled in 
the year. Of the 56, 21 were new positions and 35 were 
replacement positions.

�Legislature Provident Fund: 2 meetings were held 
during the reporting period.

�Automated Recruitment process: The Terms of 
Reference for the Automated Recruitment System and Recruitment 
Agencies were developed. 

�Exit interviews: Ten exit interviews were conducted during 
the reporting period.

�IPMS policy: The roll-out of the IPMS policy training was 
concluded during the 4th Quarter. The new policy will be imple-
mented in the 2011/2012 financial year.

�Employment Equity: 13 EE forum members attended a 

2-day training session; the EE stats as per the guidelines of 
the Department of Labour were reported to Governance 
structures of the GPL; the EE report was sent to the Depart-
ment of Labour before 30 September 2010.

�Retention strategy: A draft retention strategy document 
was developed.

�Work-life balance: The work-life balance survey results 
were communicated to staff during an HR Open Day.

�Learning and development: A total of 58 employees 
were granted bursaries during the 2010/2011 financial year.

�Venue hire: 72 events took place in the City Hall and 
Mayivuke Rooms.

�Members’ biographical details booklet: The draft 
booklet is in place and is currently being circulated for inputs.

�Social responsibility project: The social responsi-
bility project was implemented through distribution of food 
to Bambanani Shelter for abused women and children; 
donations of redundant GPL assets to the Duncan Sizanani 
home-based care and the initiation of a project with Mondi 
Paper to recycle paper to raise funds for identified needy 
organisations.

�Customer Relationship Management System 
(CRM): The CRM system was reconfigured using the service 
charter for optimum resolution of issues.

�Sports and Recreation: 4 soccer matches were held in 
the province.

�Customer satisfaction survey: The annual satisfaction 
survey was completed, directorates developed action plans 
and follow-up meetings were held to ensure  that remedial 
and corrective actions were implemented.

�Security: A new service provider is in place to assist the 
GPL with physical security. The new integrated safety and 
security plan was implemented with other security agencies 
such as the State Security Agency and SAPS.

�Parking: The parking business case was approved and 
implemented.

�Wellness: Members and staff participated in 5 outside 
marathon events. 165 staff and 47 Members are regular 
users of the gym facility.

�Renovations to the building: The construction and 
renovation of the 3rd and 4th floor west wing of the building 
was completed as well as renovations to the Mayivuke 
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Rooms. The renovations to the Auditorium included the 
completion of the construction.

�Long-term renovations plans: The concept and imple-
mentation of plans have been completed and approved for 
the refurbishment of the exterior walls of the main building; 
rehabilitation of  Beyers Naude Square; refurbishment of 
the City Hall and refurbishment of offices in the west wing 
of the building.

�Technical services in the House and Commit-
tees: The technical software and firmware upgrades in the 
House have been completed. All ageing microphones were 
replaced in committee rooms. The tender process for the 
procurement of audio-visual equipment for the auditorium 
has been completed.

�Anti-virus: The anti-virus solution was replaced by the 
more robust and stable McAfee anti-virus solution.

�Network upgrade: All network devices have been 
upgraded to the latest operating systems.

5. Financial Management
The Programme’s expenditure amounted to R160.5million translat-
ing into a 93.7% usage of the allocated budget, with an under-
expenditure of R11.3million. Savings were realised on goods and 
services due to austerity measures that were introduced on IT 
outsourcing and consultants, licensing fees as well as air travel. In 
the case of certain line items however, such as telephone usage, 
recruitment costs as well as transport and shuttle services expendi-
ture exceeded the budget. 
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1. Purpose
The purpose of the Core Business Stream is to provide 
strategic direction to the stream directorates to implement 
the core functions of the GPL. This includes the promotion 
of information and knowledge exchange; to support 
GPL business processes; retention of institutional memory 
and embedding knowledge management into business 
processes that support the execution of GPL mandates. 

Through the Communications Directorate, the stream 
supports the enhancement of the GPL’s profile, by ensuring 
that the image, role and products of the GPL are profiled and 
branded in terms of best practice standards. Furthermore, 
the stream through the Parliamentary Business Directorate 
ensures seamless provision of administration, co-ordination 
and management services to the House and its commit-
tees. This includes the provision of procedural advice to 
committees and Presiding Officers, ensuring the accuracy 
of document content as well as providing research services.

2. Key Functions
The mandate of the Core Business Stream is to implement 
the vision, mission and goals of the GPL, through the three 
directorates under its umbrella, namely:

�� Parliamentary Business Directorate, comprising the 
Committees, Proceedings, Research and the NCOP 
Units;

�� Information and Knowledge Management Directorate, 
comprising the Information Centre; Documents and 
Services and the Hansard and Languages Units; and

�� Communications Directorate comprising the Public 
Participation and Petitions (PPP) and the Communica-
tions Units.

The Core Business Stream is therefore mandated to execute 
the following functions: 

�� Co-ordinate and drive the execution of the core mandate 
of the GPL;

�� Provide strategic direction to the stream and its direc-
torates, overall strategic planning, implementation, 
monitoring and evaluation;

�� Financial management and administration of the stream;

�� Capacity building within the stream;

�� Effective and efficient co-ordination of support functions 
to the Committees and the House;

�� Develop and deliver strategic projects which are 
organised through directorates;

�� Monitoring and evaluation of the key deliverables on 
law-making, oversight and public participation;

�� Improve internal processes including inter-directorate 
planning and stream planning and accountability;

�� Foster good relations with internal and external service 
providers and support to GPL stakeholders;

�� Co-ordinate the interface between the Office of the 
Speaker and committees of the House;

�� Co-ordinate provincial law-making processes; and 

�� Promote information and knowledge sharing to support 
GPL business processes, retention of institutional 
memory, and embedding knowledge management into 
business processes that support the GPL mandates.

3. Measurable Objectives

�� To facilitate the report on the annual performance of the 
GPL;

�� To undertake team building sessions on an annual basis 
for the stream;

�� To ensure effective strategic management and direction 
to the stream;

�� To ensure financial management of the office;

�� To ensure effective human capital development and 
management;

�� To implement the Institutional Project Management tool 
for the stream;

�� To implement institutional M & E Framework in core 
business;
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�� To implement the business model of the GPL;

�� To facilitate the stream report to the LSB, Presiding 
Officers, Office Bearers and the Secretariat;

�� To hold stakeholder workshops for the stream;

�� To co-ordinate the activities and outputs of the stream;

�� To further strengthen stakeholder relations with other 
legislatures;

�� To co-ordinate a study on international best practice in 
the legislative business;

�� To facilitate the inter-legislature exchange programmes 
for sharing and learning exercise for the stream in consul-
tation with the institutional plan;

�� To implement the improved and adopted Resolutions 
Tracking System and processes;

�� To implement revised House Rules;

�� To implement House Resolutions regarding relations with 
ISDs;

�� To ensure improved research services;

�� To improve relations between the GPL, NCOP  and local 
government;

�� To study the efficacy of the committee system and 
services;

�� To implement the adopted Committee Inquiries Act;

�� To revise reporting requirements to the GPL in order to 
improve Oversight;

�� To explore policy management processes as an area of 
oversight focus for the GPL;

�� To implement the Collaboration Strategy of the GPL;

�� To support the  participation of stakeholders;

�� To improve the provision of professional research services;

�� To improve the profile of the GPL;

�� To implement the Leadership Model of the GPL;

�� To implement the Bua le Sechaba campaign;

�� To study the Efficacy of Laws Passed Since 1994;

�� To explore mechanisms to improve law-making processes 
of the province;

�� To improve Stakeholder Management Services;

�� To develop and maintain systems for effective information 
dissemination;

�� To mainstream public participation across GPL processes;

�� To mobilise and educate stakeholders to participate 
in legislative processes and taking programmes to the 
people;

�� To implement Sector Parliaments;

�� To increase the number of petition submissions;

�� To encourage the GPL to participate in community work;

�� To enhance and maintain stakeholder relations;

�� To facilitate the process of drafting the Public Participa-
tion;

�� To report to the Speaker as required by the Rules of the 
House;

�� To facilitate the Resolution Tracking System and processes 
by delivering the Electronic Workflow System;

�� To strengthen relations with Chapter 9 institutions and 
institutions that support democracy by facilitating access 
to information services and knowledge products;

�� To provide information to support and enhance the 
research agenda by providing aligned information 
services;

�� To support committee work, Committee Inquiries and 
Ministerial Accountability processes by providing 
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required supporting information;

�� To support committee work and House Plenary services 
by providing an electronic and manual repository for the 
storage and archiving of documents and records;

�� To support committee work and House Plenary services 
by providing effective printing services;

�� To provide a record capturing and management service 
for the House and committees;

�� To facilitate capacity building by developing and 
strengthening existing relationships and partnerships with 
relevant forums, professional bodies and independent 
bodies;

�� To embed Knowledge Management practices in GPL 
functions and processes;

�� To deliver a functional Digital Attendance Register for 
MPLs;

�� To support constituency work by providing relevant infor-
mation service to MPLs;

�� To provide language services to the House and commit-
tees;

�� To support committee work and House services by 
providing refreshment services to support the House and 
committees;

�� To enhance strategic management of the directorate;

�� To provide management control and guidance, monitor-
ing stream outputs, realigning meetings for effectiveness; 
and

�� To ensure financial management of the directorate.

4. Summary Of Achievements
Compilation of the Gauteng Provincial Legisla-
ture Annual Report, 2009/2010 (Annual Report): 
Core Business managed the compilation of the 2009/2010 
Annual Report which was produced and submitted to the 
GPL within the specified timelines.  Copies of the citizen’s 
version of the Annual Report were printed in Xitsonga; English; 

Afrikaans; isiZulu; Sepedi; as well as in Braille.

The Public Participation Strategy: The strategy was 
revised and adopted by the GPL in the last quarter of the 
year under review.  

The NCOP Provincial Oversight Week: This event 
was successfully co-ordinated and the report was tabled at 
the NCOP.

GPL provincial delegation: Quality support was 
provided to the GPL provincial delegation for the joint sittings 
of Parliament and the NCOP.

The GPL and local councils MoU: The presentation 
for the adoption of the MoU between the GPL and the local 
councils in the province.

Support to the House and Committees: Effective 
support was provided to the House and its committees, 
including the successful delivery on committee support work 
in the form of committee schedules, successful co-ordination 
of 92 committee meetings; and 29 House sittings; research 
analyses and procedural legal advice.

The record of the House and committees has been 
developed and managed effectively, was made available to 
MPLs and the members of the public on request, and all audit 
query publishing backlog removed. A language service has 
also been provided to facilitate public participation in House 
and committee activities.  

The stream also succeeded in identifying an electronic 
MPL attendance register that will be rolled out in the institution 
in the 2011/2012 financial year.  

Co-ordinated one programming meeting, and revised the 
operational manuals of the NCOP and House Proceeding 
Units. Successfully marketed services and products to support 
committees, research and corporate activities during the Infor-
mation Centre Open Day, and positive feedback has been 
received from stakeholders.  The stream also successfully 
convened the SALSA KM Forum meeting in Ba-Phalaborwa.

Processed 91 Announcements, Tablings and Committee 
Reports (ATC); 55 Order Papers; 29 Question Papers; 23 
Oral Questions; 105 Written Questions; and 3 Motions.  
Scrutinised and referred 41 reports, mainly all 1st Quarterly 
reports, and all annual reports including from entities and 
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Agencies. Published the revised candidates list of the DA, 
and processed the papers for the swearing in of the new 
Members of that party. Successfully facilitated the tabling 
and adoption of FIS reports in the House.  

Profiling the GPL: The front desk proposal; the draft Gift 
Policy; and a memorabilia shop proposal were developed, 
and the corporate video was completed and presented to the 
ECC. The Corporate Identity Manual has been completed 
and the draft is in circulation for inputs.  

International conferences: Two researchers presented 
papers at 2 international conferences in Nigeria.

Paper usage: A manual to guide the GPL community on 
how to minimise paper usage has been developed, and will 
be published in the new financial year.  The amount of paper 
that is provided to political parties has been reduced, and 
will be reviewed in line with the adoption of the Political Party 
Fund Act.  The procurement of bottled still water with the 

GPL logo has reduced the budget by 50%, and this further 
promotes the GPL brand.  

5. Financial Management
The Core Business Stream reflects actual expenditure of 
R85.6million against an adjusted appropriation of R87.5million 
translating into expenditure of 98%. The underspending of 
R1.7million, variance, R700 thousand was attributable to vacant 
positions of the stream office manager, which was filled in 
2011/2012. Whilst R1million rand was savings that resulted 
from the implementation of the austerity measures. 
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Executive Office of the CFO

1.Purpose 
The purpose of the Office of the CFO is to provide profession-
al Financial, Risk and Supply Chain Management services 
to our stakeholders through service excellence to support 
the realisation of the GPL strategic goals and objectives. 
The office strives to raise financial resources equitably and 
efficiently to ensure adequate funding for the implementation 
of the institutional strategic plan and ensures the efficient and 
effective demand and supply chain management system. 

The office promotes strong financial and risk management 
controls through partnership processes with Programme 
Managers, Chairpersons of Committees and Accounting 
Officers of Parties participating in the GPL. It must ensure 
financial integrity whilst striving to achieve a balance between 
budget priorities and expenditure through interaction with all 
internal and external stakeholders. 

The office is also responsible for ensuring continuous imple-
mentation of FAMLA to enhance the fiscal stability, account-
ability and integrity of the GPL. 

The CFO’s office is the integrity arm of the GPL and consists 
of highly skilled staff who are committed to providing a high 
level of service to accomplish its strategic goals and objec-
tives. 

The Programme comprises the following directorates:

�� Financial Management;

�� Supply Chain Management; and

�� Audit, Risk and Governance.

2. Key Functions
The key function of the Office of the Chief Financial Officer is 
to enhance the financial stability, accountability and integrity of 
the GPL. The office strives to raise financial resources equitably 
and efficiently, and to manage the financial assets and liabilities 
soundly. 

The Executive Office of the CFO provides strategic guidance 
and direction to the overall programme. It has a legislative 
mandate to strengthen the GPL’s financial policy, effective risk 
management processes, transparency and effective financial 

management in respect of revenue, expenditure, assets and 
liabilities.

The 2010/2011 financial year marked the third anniversary of 
the fully established Office of the CFO, which is now fully recog-
nised in the new GPL organisational structure. In order for the 
office to be effective, a number of key positions still need to be 
filled. This will allow the programme to continue to perform the 
high quality work as it has in the past, whilst at the same time 
capitalising on its new stature, positioning and capacity to drive 
the office to new heights within the GPL.

3. Measurable Objectives 

�� To ensure efficient and effective financial management;

�� To ensure cash management;

�� To ensure payment of Party facilities in line with relevant 
Acts and policies;

�� To ensure efficient and effective budget management;

�� To ensure effective demand and supply management 
and improved SCM administration;

�� To ensure improved and intensified asset management;

�� To ensure the promotion of Affirmative Procurement 
through monitoring and maintaining approved institution-
al policies;

�� To ensure effective management of the tender process in 
line with applicable legislation;

�� To ensure effective and efficient travel management;

�� To ensure effective joint contract management with 
Corporate Legal;

�� To ensure improved and effective management of vendor 
database;

�� To ensure effective and efficient Risk Management 
Programme for the GPL;

�� To facilitate and organise the annual external audit 
process;
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�� To ensure effective and efficient management of Internal 
Audit function as guided by audit coverage plan;

�� To ensure efficient and effective corporate governance;

�� To facilitate and organise the annual external audit 
process; and

�� To ensure effective and efficient Risk Management 
Programme for the GPL.

4. Summary Of Achievements 
The GPL obtained an unqualified audit opinion with no matters 
of emphasis.There were no material findings on the annual 
performance report as well as compliance with laws and 
regulations. The GPL therefore, attained a “clean audit” for the 
2010/2011 financial year.

Annual Performance and Financial Plans were developed for 
the CFO Stream and approved by the Board. The stream also 
co-ordinated and finalised the 2011/2012 strategic plan for the 
institution. The strategic plan and the budget for 2011/2012 
were presented to the Speaker’s Budget Lekgotla and the LSB 
for adoption. The approved strategic plan was then submitted 
to Treasury and subsequently aligned to the final allocation from 
Treasury after certification by all Programme Managers. 

Budget Council meetings were held to consider annual perform-
ance and financial plans for 2011/2012 for recommendation 
to the Speaker and the LSB. Meetings were also conducted to 
consider emerging priorities and pressing issues for the adjust-
ment budget. The adjustment budget was presented to the LSB 
and approved for onward submission to the Provincial Treasury. 

A meeting was facilitated between the Speaker and MEC of 
Finance to initiate consultative processes on funding require-
ments for 2011/2012. Meetings were also held with the Head 
of Treasury to discuss funding requirements for the 2011/2012 
MTEF and adjustment budget. Treasury was further engaged to 
fund other emerging priorities through the adjustment budget for 
2010/2011. 

Implementation plans were developed for FAMLA. Regulations 
were also finalised and tabled at the Secretariat for adoption. 
Transitional arrangements for GRAP and FAMLA implementa-
tion were developed and approved by the Executive Authority 
as recommended by the Accounting Officer. Consultants were 
appointed to assist with the transition from modified cash basis 

to accrual accounting and GRAP implementation. 

Austerity and cost-cutting measures were continuously imple-
mented to realise savings. The standard menu on catering for 
committees was approved by the Speaker and implement-
ed. Revenue-generation measures were also developed and 
adopted for implementation.

CFO Stream Executive meetings were held immediately after 
the LSB and the Secretariat meetings to communicate decisions 
of the LSB and the Secretariat. Tasks emanating from the Secre-
tariat and the LSB were updated on the tracking register. The 
monthly reporting register was tracked to ensure compliance 
with submission of all reports for the stream. 

The CFO also prepared a proposal for the Speaker on salary 
increments for senior management, prepared responses to 
questions and resolutions of oversight committees – SCOPA, 
GEYODI and OCPOL, reviewed and approved revised job 
profiles and associated job grading of the SCM and Finance 
Directorates and finalised and appointed the following new 
positions emanating from the OD of the CFO Stream: 

�� Director SCM; 

�� Junior Accountant; 

�� Payroll Officer; 

�� SCM Officer; 

�� Goods Receiving Officer; and 

�� 3 x Admin Secretaries to each Directorate in the Office of 
the CFO Stream. 

The Finance team also visited Parliament to conduct a bench-
marking exercise on the transition from modified cash basis 
to accrual basis accounting systems, facilitated the corporate 
governance review in line with the Internal Audit Coverage 
Plan, conducted the tracking and monitoring of the Stakehold-
er Management survey and finalised the evaluation audit on 
the LIMS project. The report was presented to the Secretariat 
and tabled to the Speaker. In line with the recommendations, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed to conduct a forensic 
audit on the LIMS project. 

The Asset Disposal Committee finalised the disposal of remaining 
assets in the Duncan Hall and facilitated and prepared a report 
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of the Political Party Fund for tabling by the Speaker in the House. 
The Delegations of Authority was revised in line with the new 
Organisational Structure. The Audit of the 2009/2010 financial 
year was concluded with the final audit report submitted at the 
end of July 2010. The GPL once again achieved an unquali-
fied audit with only two matters of emphasis, that is, improving 
matters of the UIF for MPLs and payment of accounts within 30 
days. 

The Office of the CFO developed the External Audit Strategy 
in preparation for the 2010/2011 external audit and the imple-
mentation thereof to achieve an unqualified audit. The CFO 
also participated in the Presiding Officers and Chairpersons’ 
strategic planning sessions. Bi-lateral discussions and engage-
ments with committee chairpersons and relevant committee staff 
were undertaken to confirm annual performance plans and 
associated budgets – budgets were determined and allocation 
letters were issued to committee chairpersons for certification. 

The CFO participated in the National SALSA CFO Forum as 
Chairperson of the Forum and also attended the SALSA confer-
ence in North-West Province. Closer liaison with the Members 
Affairs Directorate was maintained to ensure service excellence 
to MPLs. Monthly reports for parties were prepared and distrib-
uted at Members Affairs meetings. Regular meetings were held 
with the Office of the AG and relations remain extremely cordial 
on a professional basis. In its assessment of the GPL as an 
Auditee, the AG rated the GPL a maximum 5 out of 5. 

Regular meetings were held with Treasury whilst the recogni-
tion of constitutional roles was respected. Business and Financial 
Planning, the Director, Finance and Planning, and Budget 
Manager, engaged regularly with all directorates and respec-
tive programme managers to finalise the budget for 2011/2012 
as well as the reprioritisation of projects for 2010/2011 in order 
to spend within available resources. Programme managers were 
continuously engaged to resolve their budget-related matters. 

Scheduled meetings were also conducted to determine 
planned activities to inform expenditure projections. Guidance 
and feedback on budgetary matters are provided both on a 
formal and informal basis. Regular engagements with all direc-
torates and respective programme managers were conducted 
to finalise expenditure projections. 

The Risk Management Officer engaged regularly with all 
directorates and respective programme managers to address 
audit issues and update tracking reports on risk management. 
Courtesy calls were made to travelling MPLs to ensure that all 

travel arrangements were satisfactory. A proactive approach 
was adopted to eliminate travel problems by having regular 
meetings with travelling candidates. Meetings were also held 
with SARS to discuss tax matters affecting the GPL and MPLs.

5. Financial Management
The Programme reflected actual expenditure of R17.4million 
against the adjusted budget of R18.3million for the financial 
year. 

This represented 94.9% utilisation of the budget. The Programme 
underspent by R940,000 or 5.1%. The underexpenditure is 
primarily registered under personnel expenditure due to delays in 
filling vacant positions such as that of Director Risk and Govern-
ance as well as the Risk and SCM Compliance Officers due to 
difficulties experienced in attracting incumbents in this field. It is 
however noted that the asset management payroll budget was 
included in the stream. The transition of the asset management 
function from Stream Corporate Support Services to the CFO 
programme did not transpire during the financial year. 
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SECTION IV – THE AUDIT COMMITTEE



GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE 

Report of the Audit Committee 
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2011. 

Audit Committee Members and 
Attendance
The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder 
and should meet at least 4 times per annum as per its 
approved charter. During the current year 6 meetings were 
held. 

Name of Member	 Number of Meetings Attended

JL Davis (Chairperson)	 6

AR Martin	 4 

V.P. Skosana	 6

R. Letwaba	 5

M. Madlala	 1

Audit Committee Responsibility 
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its 
responsibilities arising from section 45(1) of the FAMLA. The 
Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate 
formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has 
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has 
discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

The effectiveness of internal control 
The system of internal control applied by the Gauteng 
Provincial Legislature over financial and risk management is 
effective, efficient and transparent. 

In line with the FAMLA and the King III Report on Corporate 
Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit 
Committee and management with assurance that the internal 
controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by 
means of the risk management process, as well as the identi-
fication of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to 
the controls and processes. From the various reports of the 
Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial 
Statements and the management report of the Auditor-Gener-
al, it was noted that no matters were reported indicating any 

material deficiencies in the system of internal control or any 
deviations there from. Accordingly, we can report that the 
system of internal control for the period under review was 
efficient and effective. 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 
The Audit Committee has: 

�� reviewed and discussed the audited annual Financial 
Statements to be included in the Annual Report, with the 
Auditor-General and the Accounting Officer; 

�� reviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and 
management’s response thereto; and

�� reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices. 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-Gener-
al’s conclusions on the annual Financial Statements, and is of 
the opinion that the audited annual Financial Statements be 
accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-
General. 

Internal audit 
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function 
is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks 
pertinent to the department in its audit. 

Auditor-General South Africa 
The Audit Committee has met with the Auditor-General South 
Africa to ensure that there are not unresolved issues.

JL Davis  
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL 
TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON VOTE 
NO. 2: GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. �I have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

the Gauteng Provincial Legislature (GPL), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, 
and the statement of financial performance, statement of 
changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the 
year then ended and a summary of significant account-
ing policies and other explanatory information, as set out 
on pages 121 to 162.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the 
financial statements
2. �The accounting officer is responsible for the prepara-

tion and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with South African Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 
and the requirements of the Financial Management of 
Gauteng Provincial Legislature Act, 2009 (Act No. 7 of 
2009) (FAMLA), and for such internal control as manage-
ment determines necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstate-
ment, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility 
3. �As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa,1996, section 4 of the Public 
Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and 
section 56(1) of FAMLA, my responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on my 
audit.

4. �I conducted my audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010 
issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 
2010.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free from material misstatement.

5. �An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial state-
ments, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the GPL’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the GPL’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

6. �I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit 
opinion.

Opinion
7. �In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the GPL as at 
31 March 2011, and its financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with SA 
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the FAMLA.

Emphasis of matters
8. �I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not 

modified in respect of these matters:

Restatement of corresponding figures 
9. �As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, the 

corresponding figures for 31 March 2010 were restated 
as a result of the first time adoption of SA Standards of 
GRAP during 31 March 2011 in the financial statements 
of the Gauteng Provincial Legislature at, and for the year 
ended, 31 March 2010. 

Material underspending of the budget 
10. �As disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, the 

GPL materially underspent on capital expenditure which 
amounted to R11 000 000.

Report on other legal and regulatory require-
ments
11. �In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General 

Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 
33872 of 15 December 2010, I include below my 
findings on the annual performance report as set out 
on pages 34 to 106 and material non-compliance with 
laws and regulations applicable to the legislature.
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Predetermined objectives
12. �There are no material findings on the annual perform-

ance report.

Compliance with laws and regulations
13. �There are no findings concerning material non-compli-

ance with laws and regulations applicable to the GPL.

Internal control
14. �In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General 

Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 
33872 of 15 December 2010, I considered internal 
control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control. There are no significant deficiencies in internal 
control that resulted in a qualification of the auditor’s 
opinion on the financial statements and/or findings on 
predetermined objectives and/or material non- compli-
ance with laws and regulations.

Johannesburg
29 July 2011

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL 
TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON VOTE 
NO. 2: GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER to 
the Executive Authority and Provincial 
Legislature of the Republic of South 
Africa

1. �GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF 
FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

This report reviews the progress made during the reporting 
year by describing the main financial achievements (and 
challenges) against the key financial objectives of the 
Gauteng Provincial Legislature (GPL). In line with the strategic 
goal of Leadership and Corporate Governance, systems of 
good Corporate Governance, effective administration and 
good Financial Management Systems continued during the 
financial year.

1.1 Budgeting process and allocation
Goals and objectives were the prime outputs of the Strategic 
Planning process. The defined objectives (outputs of the 
Strategic Planning and Policy making Process) were then 
translated into plans which were consistent with the Policies, 
Political Priorities and guidelines laid down by the Political 
Leadership. 

Further refinements and enhancements to our budgeting 
process were applied during the financial year. A strategic 
focus was infused to drive the budget process with the 
ultimate goal of arriving at a budget that is informed by GPL 
strategic business objectives. These developments synchro-
nised effectively with the performance budgeting approach 
as adopted by the GPL.

For the year under review, the GPL received a total budget 
allocation of R310.1 million to implement its strategic plan. 
This represents an increase of 33.3% increase as compared 
to the budget allocation of the previous financial year. 
During the year, projected expenditure to the end of the 
financial year identified the need for additional funding in 
respect of statutory and contractual obligations, accruals 
from the previous financial year and emerging priorities. The 
approach adopted to meet the additional funding require-
ments was first to identify savings and under spending inter-
nally before requesting additional funds from the Treasury. 
After this process, the GPL then submitted a motivation to 
the Provincial Treasury requesting additional funding to 
finance the remaining projected over-expenditure. Included 
in the final budget was an amount of R15.7million allocated 

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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through the adjustment budget in respect of the following:

�� R10million allocated to political parties as political party 
funding to mobilise citizens to participate in the local 
government elections as part of deepening democracy 
and participation;

�� R2.5million to fund salary adjustments as agreed between 
the GPL Management and National Education, Health 
and Allied Workers Union (NEHAWU); 

�� R2.1million for the replacement of the City Hall chairs; 

�� R427,000 to fund the development of the GPL law-making 
framework and the piloting Sector Forum for the 5 priority 
committees;

�� R310,000 in respect of software licenses for the 
Automated Recruitment and Talent Development systems;

�� R196,000 for the migration from a modified cash to 
accrual basis of accounting and implementation of the 
GRAP standards in compliance to the Financial Manage-
ment of Gauteng Provincial GPL Act, 2009 (FAMLA); 
and

�� R106,000 for the implementation of the Monitoring and 
Evaluation system.

An additional amount of R53.7million was received as a 
statutory appropriation in respect of remuneration for Political 
Office Bearers. This amount is distinct from the GPL voted 
budget and falls within the ambit of the Direct Charges Act.

1.2 Expenditure Analysis
The GPL spent R290.4million (2010: R232.6million) of the 
total allocated budget. This represents 93.65 % utilisation of 
the total voted funds for the year. The Institution has realised 
an under spend of R19.7million, primarily attributable to the 
deferment of capital projects, approved positions as per the 
organisational structure not filled as well as the realisation 
of savings through the implementation of cost containment 
measures. Actual spending is classified in the table below:  
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Compensatipn of 
employees

41%

Goods and 
Services

36%

Transfers to 
Parties
19%

Capital 
expenditure

4%

The total expenditure of the current financial year increased 
by 24.89% as compared to the previous financial year. An 
analysis of the financial growth linked to the Institutional 
strategy has revealed the following strategic growth areas:

�� An increased allocation to provide support to committees 
of the House and support structures in line with the GPL 
Business Model and Strategy;

�� Increased capacity in Research to ensure support to the 
work oversight, law-making and public participation 
programmes;

�� A notable geared increase in Members facilities, capacity 
building and funding allocation to political parties; and

�� More focus on corporate governance processes and 
enhancement of business tools.

1.3 Under / Over spending and Savings
The GPL under spent by R19.7million of its total allocated 
budget. Lack of spending on capital projects and capital 
items is the primary contributing factor to the under spend 
for the reporting year. The under spend in this category has 
been determined at R12.7million. The main capital under 
spend items are stated below:

�� Under expenditure on the auditorium conversion project;

�� The installation of the audio visual equipment has been 
deferred to the 2011/2012 financial year; and 

�� Under spending on furniture incorporating the acquisi-
tion of the City Hall chairs and other IT equipment not 
acquired during the financial year.

As reflected on the annual Financial Statements, a further 
contributing item to the under spend was incurred on 
approved positions not filled during the financial year. It is 
anticipated that these positions would be filled in the early 
part of the new financial year. 

The following under expenditure items were also noted 
during the financial year:

�� The balance of the political party funding and constitu-
ency allowance for the Freedom Front Plus party was 

ECONOMIC 
CLASSIFICATION

% SPENT
2010/11

 ACTUAL SPENDING 
2010/11

 ACTUAL SPENDING 
2009/10 % GROWTH

Compensation of 
employees 41.0% 119 065 103 824 14.68%

Goods and services 36.2% 105 020 100 579 4.42%

Transfer to parties 18.7% 54 449 22 000 147.50%

Capital expenditure 4.1% 11 909 6 147 93.74%

TOTAL 100.0% 290 443 232 550 24.89%
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retained due to the audit report of the party not submitted 
as required by the Political Party Fund Act; 

�� All planned international and local trips could not be 
undertaken in the Offices of the Speaker and Secretary 
to the Legislature due to other Institutional priorities; and

�� Under-spending on travel and workshop and functions of 
committees as a result of reduced level of activity linked 
to the local government election period and political 
decision to reduce the number of delegates on interna-
tional study tours. 

Whilst under spending has been reported above, overspend-
ing occurred in the following operational areas:

�� Transport and shuttle service were overspending as a 
result of poor and inadequate planning for the current 
financial year which was also exacerbated by accruals 
from the previous financial year. This will be corrected 
during the year-end adjustments through the movement 
of fund from savings. 

�� Poor management, the non-functioning of the soft-
locking system, the delay in implementation of integrat-
ed business tools policy and the extension of business 
tools to other staff members to enable to them to function 
properly led to an overspend in telephone budget. Steps 
have been taken to ensure that the soft-locking system is 
fully functional.

�� Recruitment costs were under-funded with a commitment 
that external agencies will not be utilised for recruitment 
purposes. However, during the course of the year, it 
became necessary to utilise external agencies, especial-
ly to recruit for scarce skills.

�� Internal Audit fees were also exceeded due to accruals 
that were carried over from the previous financial year.

1.4 Savings through austerity measures 
It is credible to note that savings to the value of R8million 
were realised on goods and services primarily due to the 
implementation of austerity measures as introduced by the 
Institution’s leadership. The savings were realised in the 
following areas: 

�� Stationery, printing, cleaning materials, plant services, 

advertising, postage and courier services, communica-
tions and consumables due to operational efficiencies.

�� Effective utilisation of in-house capacity and use of profes-
sional services and consultants only when absolutely 
necessary; 

�� Reduction in the number of delegates and international 
study tours;

�� Reduction in newspaper subscriptions as Members and 
staff continuously access newspapers via the internet as 
the Institution subscribed to on line newspaper facilities 
to curb costs;

�� The implementation of the HR training plan resulted in 
properly co-ordinated training programmes for staff strin-
gently linked to performance reviews;

�� Savings on IT outsourcing due to the termination of the 
contractor and implementation of interim measures whilst 
considering the cost benefit analysis of in sourcing versus 
outsourcing; 

�� A saving was realised in the parking management area 
as a result of the GPL taking over the management of its 
parking facilities; and

�� Reduction on maintenance and repairs as the contingen-
cy budget was not utilised.

2. ENHANCED FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
The implementation of the new Financial Management of 
Gauteng Provincial Legislature Act, 2009 (FAMLA) with 
effect from 1 April 2010 required preparation during the 
past year which will be continued with an ongoing intensive 
training programme and continuous interaction with the 
legislative sector.

The FAMLA provides a dynamic opportunity to make a 
quantum leap in improving financial management practices. 
Through this process, every official is accountable for 
applying financial and risk management in their area of 
responsibility. A major milestone of this piece of legislation 
is the regularisation of a consultative process between the 
Speaker and the MEC for Finance on the funding require-
ments of the institution. This will ensure that the GPL is 
adequately funded to fully implement its strategic plan with 
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the necessary base line allocation. The Act also enhances 
the recognition of GPL as an autonomous organ of state.

The effect of FAMLA will have marked results in financial 
management policy bringing the GPL into the forefront 
of the sector financial reforms. The legislative framework 
reflects the world best practice in financial management.

The process of control over budgets and monthly reporting 
operated satisfactorily during the year. The Planning 
and Budget Unit regularly met with Programme and 
Sub-Programme Managers providing guidance on business 
planning and budget implementation. Financial perform-
ance and expenditure projections were monitored on a 
monthly basis and reported at stream meetings for interro-
gation and scrutiny. 

Actual and projection reports were submitted to Provin-
cial Treasury on a monthly and quarterly basis in line with 
formats and timelines provided by Provincial Treasury. 
The timing of monthly reports provides management with 
an ‘early warning’ of deviations from planned results and 
targets. These were also reported at the Audit and Risk 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

Programme and sub-programme managers updated 
quarterly expenditure projections to provide action plans for 
implementation of the budget and reasons for any devia-
tions. This process allowed managers to identify gaps 
timeously and institute the necessary plans to achieve the 
identified objectives. The commitment register has been 
fully implemented. This provides Programme Managers with 
on-line information on outstanding purchase requisitions, 
purchase orders and payments made to date.

The GPL identifies itself as a learning organisation which is 
performance driven. Accordingly, training of staff serving on 
various Supply Chain Committees as well as risk manage-
ment was arranged during the year. This process was in 
line with the objectives of the Office of the Chief Finance 
Officer (CFO) in ensuring that responsible managers are 
given the necessary skills required to optimise financial 
management and further enhance achievement of organi-
sational objectives. 

3. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 
The GPL is committed to the broader achievement of socio-
economic goals. It has put in place processes that are 

aligned to the aims and objectives of both the Broad-Based 
Black Economic Empowerment Act (BBBEE) and the Prefer-
ential Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA). The Institu-
tion also developed a Supply Chain Management policy 
which is aligned to the FAMLA ensuring enhanced Supply 
Chain Management standards. Provision for the promotion 
of BBBEE is also made in the policy to further emphasise the 
significance as orchestrated in both the Acts.

Through the adoption of the preferential procurement 
strategy, a preference mechanism has been introduced in 
the procurement of all goods and services to target especial-
ly Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs). Reasona-
ble progress has been made in its implementation but not 
to its full extent. A Compliance Officer position has been 
created to oversee and ensure full implementation in this 
regard. The following achievements against targets were 
noted for the reporting year:

�� Total spend on goods and services was R93.1million 
(2010: R60.1million);

�� BBBEE spend was R50.1million or 53.84% against a 
target of 60% (2010: R25.6 / 42.6%); 

�� R25.7million or 27.64% was spent on women with target 
at 30% (2010: R11.7million / 19.48%);

�� R6.3million or 6.83% was spent on youth against a target 
of 10% (2010: R476,179 / 0.79%); and

�� Total spend on People with Disabilities (PwD) was 
R93,000 at 0.1% against a 5% target (2010:) R9 719 
/ 0.02%.

Refined tender processes will largely contribute to the 
achievement of the set BBBEE goals as they encompass 
preferential procurement points that will benefit existing 
and emerging businesses managed and owned by HDIs, 
Women, Youth, People with Disabilities (PwD) with prefer-
ence to those located in the Gauteng Province. This initiative 
will assist in the realisation of the projected BEE spend for 
the MTEF. The Chief Financial Officer will monitor progress 
in achieving these targets.

4. CONSTRAINTS
Further configuration of the SAP system is still required specif-
ically in the SCM area to ensure accurate and complete 
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information and that reporting is fully automated. This 
project will be undertaken in the new financial year. 

Lack of office space requirements has now reached acute 
proportions. The City Hall is fully occupied and not adequate 
to meet current demands. Contingency plans have been 
finalized through the City Hall Rehabilitation project and 
securing of additional office space in the 1066 Building in 
Pritchard Street, Johannesburg.

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
The Legislature Services Board (LSB) continued to focus on 
improving corporate governance and consolidating the 
effective operation of the Board. In line with the GPL’s efforts 
to improve decision-making, meetings of the sub-committees 
of the Board preceded the scheduled meetings of the LSB.

The GPL strives to adhere rigorously to the principles of 
good governance, accountability and ethics in all its under-
takings. Adherence to these principles assures the GPL of 
more effective executive decision-making and allocation 
of internal resources. This requires not only that the GPL 
adheres to the prescriptive framework found in legislation 
and regulations, but also that the GPL’s corporate govern-
ance structures are aligned with the relevant provisions of 
the King Report. 

5.1 Audit and Risk Committee 
In line with section 46 of the FAMLA, the Audit and 
Risk Committee met on a quarterly basis and reviewed 
Financial Statements, monitored progress on risk manage-
ment, reviewed accounting policies and systems of internal 
control. The Committee also scrutinised reports submitted 
by both internal and external auditors on compliance levels, 
materiality, and the effectiveness of systems and provided 
valuable support to the Office of the CFO in relation to 
financial management and accountability.

Both internal and external auditors have unrestricted 
access to the Audit and Risk Committee, which ensures that 
their independence is in no way impaired. Meetings are 
attended by the appropriate members of executive manage-
ment, including those involved in risk management, control 
and finance. The committee operated in accordance with 
the charter as approved by the LSB.

The LSB annually reviews the performance of the Audit and 

Risk committee through a comprehensive evaluation process 
undertaken by independent consultants.

5.2 Risk Management 
The Accounting Officer has and maintains effective, efficient 
and transparent systems of risk management and internal 
control. Risk management is an integral part of the institu-
tions activities to reduce risks to acceptable levels. 

The Risk Management Committee met four times during the 
financial year. The mandate of the committee is to oversee 
and co-ordinate the risk management process. Manage-
ment remain responsible for the identification, assessment 
and management of risk. The responsibility is not limited to 
the Secretariat but includes the total management structure 
within each stream. 

The adopted Risk Management Strategy provided a 
framework for governing and managing the affairs of the GPL 
to identify, manage, control, reduce or eliminate business, 
financial and operational risks that may affect the perform-
ance of the GPL adversely. The strategy is further used to 
direct internal audit effort and priority, and to determine the 
skills required of managers and staff to improve controls and 
to manage these risks.

The Risk Management Officer continuously engaged with 
Management to update the risk register and report to the 
Risk Management Committee and Audit and Risk Committee 
on progress in implementing actions to mitigate risks and 
reduce risks to acceptable levels and levels of tolerance. 
The Risk Register was updated in line with the outcome 
of the high level risks based on the strategic priorities of 
the Institution. The Risk Register informed the development 
of the annual Internal Audit Plan and the risk identification 
process for all Programmes of the GPL. The risk register now 
features as a standard agenda item at the Audit and Risk 
Committee, LSB and senior management meetings.

 During the financial year, the BarnOwl System was acquired 
and implemented. All elements of the risk register will be 
captured and managed through the system which will also 
provide detailed reports for tabling with the Audit and Risk 
Committee. The system will also serve as a tracking and 
monitoring tool for all levels of management.  
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5.6 Implementation of code of conduct
The GPL consistently strives at entrenching and enforcing 
ethical and moral behaviour throughout the Institution and 
building a corporate culture on a foundation of integrity as 
reflected in the adopted values statement. Accordingly, the 
code of conduct has recently been reviewed through the 
fraud prevention strategy initiatives and will be adopted in 
the new financial year.

The GPL enjoyed a sound and stable relationship with the 
Trade Union over past year. In ensuring that there are good 
labour relations between the Union and Management, the 
GPL has formalised this through a recognition agreement 
in order to facilitate the term, manner and the scope of the 
relationship envisaged. 

5.7 �Effectiveness of health, safety and 
environment issues

There has been no reported crime or instances of injuries 
to people within the GPL’s precinct in the year. The level of 
hygiene within the GPL is viewed as satisfactory. The GPL 
building is however in need of refurbishment. Plans have 
been prepared for the phased refurbishment and rehabilita-
tion of the GPL building and its environment which has been 
included in the budget for the 2011/2012 financial year. 

6. �NEW / PROPOSED AND DISCONTINUED 
ACTIVITIES / ACTIVITIES TO BE 
DISCONTINUED 

Activities will continue to be carried out in terms of the 
constitutional and legal mandate of the GPL. 

7. ASSET MANAGEMENT 
The GPL manages its assets within the framework of the 
FAMLA. An asset management policy has also been 
developed and approved by the LSB. A working asset 
management system is in place to ensure protection of 
assets and records. An Asset Management Unit (AMU) has 
been established under the SCM Directorate in the Office 
of the CFO. This will be fully implemented in the new 
financial year.

A concerted effort is under way to strengthen the overall 
control of assets and monitoring compliance on an ongoing 
basis through enhanced individual accountability for assets 
and regular physical counts of assets.

5.3 Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function of the GPL continued to operate 
in line with the approved terms of reference and associ-
ated service level agreement based on the requirements of 
the FAMLA and Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Audit of the Institute of Internal Auditors.

Internal audits were performed on critical risk areas as 
reflected on the approved internal audit coverage plan to 
determine the adequacy of the system of internal control. 
The outcome of the internal audit reviews was regularly 
reported to Management, Risk Management Committee 
and the Audit & Risk Committee in terms of the Internal Audit 
Charter and associated service level agreement. 

The Internal Audit Function provided objective and independ-
ent assurance to management and the Audit and Risk 
Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 
controls, risk management and governance processes of 
the GPL. This was accomplished mainly through regularity, 
performance, and information technology and compliance 
audits. In pursuing this activity, the Internal Audit is guided 
by a fully functional Audit and Risk Committee at all times.

5.4 Fraud Prevention Plan 
A fraud prevention plan has been adopted which is aligned 
to the Risk Management strategy. Both documents have 
been communicated to staff and also loaded on the GPL 
intranet for awareness and reference purposes. The Fraud 
Prevention Plan (FPP) Operational Committee took respon-
sibility for the implementation of the fraud prevention plan 
within the GPL. Comprehensive progress has been made 
on the implementation strategy of the fraud prevention plan. 
A fraud awareness workshop was also held at the end of 
the 2010/2011 financial year during which utilisation of 
the new fraud reporting hot line was strongly encouraged. 
Further workshops are planned during the new financial 
year.

5.5 Management processes to minimise conflict 
of interest
A register has been established for all Members to disclose 
any conflicts of interest. Same will be extended to all staff 
in the new financial year. On evaluation of tenders, the 
register is cross referenced with the tender documents to 
ensure no conflict of interest exists.
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8. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
In line with the requirements of FAMLA, the Account-
ing Officer after the end of each quarter reported to the 
Executive Authority the GPL’s performance in implementing 
the annual performance plan in that quarter.

Performance information plays a significant role in govern-
ance and accountability and consequently more focus was 
applied on the quality and timeliness of the information.

Performance and financial reports were prepared for each 
quarter and also submitted to relevant internal and external 
stakeholders. The reports seek to present the state of affairs 
of the GPL and its performance against predetermined 
objectives at the end of each reporting period. 

Programme performance is reported at dedicated Secre-
tariat meetings on a quarterly basis. Emphasis was given 
to the development, communication and introduction of 
tools, procedures and structures for business planning and 
performance monitoring. Various strategies have been put 
in place to ensure the GPL’s broad objectives are achieved.

The GPL has entrenched performance reporting as an 
integral part of an effective accountability framework.

9. �IMPORTANT POLICY DECISIONS AND 
STRATEGIC ISSUES FACING THE GPL

The GPL in the execution of its mandate will undertake the 
following primary initiatives to enhance the way it functions:

�� Emphasis on the oversight model and role of committees 
whilst continuing to put in place appropriate systems for 
executive accountability;

�� Focussing on the development of procedures, skills 
and resources for effective and continuous oversight as 
embedded in the Turnaround Strategy;

�� Improving the effectiveness of the LSB and Secretariat by 
the application of principles of good governance; 

�� To operate efficiently and effectively to satisfy the strategic 
imperatives of the business by improving the efficacy of 
the existing structures; 

�� Efficient, economical and effective utilisation of limited 
resources with due cognizance of the fiscal constraints 

and liquidity challenges facing the Province;

�� Allocate resources efficiently by directing more resources 
towards the constitutional mandate and making the work 
of elected representatives more effective; and

�� Maintaining effective, efficient and transparent systems of 
financial management, risk management, internal control 
and internal audit.

10. �STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE (SCOPA) 
RESOLUTIONS

The following resolutions were deemed necessary by the 
SCOPA.

SCOPA RESOLUTION PROGRESS
The Committee noted that accruals which 
exceeded the payment terms of 30 days 
amounted to R1,303,000 and that the 
difference between such accruals and 
available funds amounting to R1,205,000 
would therefore have constituted unauthor-
ized expenditure had the amounts due been 
paid on time. 
Resolution: That the GPL submit a progress 
report on the effectiveness of measures put 
in place to improve the management of the 
timeous payment of invoices by 31 January 
2011.

A report 
regarding the 
control measures 
was submitted to 
SCOPA by the 
stipulated date. 

The Committee is concerned that the GPL did 
not always effect payment to creditors within 
30 days on receipt of invoices as required 
by Section 38(1)(f) and 76(4)of the PFMA .
Resolution: That the Speaker ensures that 
the Accounting Officer complies with the 
requirements of all applicable legislations 
and ensure that creditors are paid within the 
stipulated timeframes and a progress report 
should be provided to SCOPA on the 31 
March 2011.

A report 
containing 
measures to 
address the 
weakness was 
submitted to 
SCOPA by the 
stipulated date. 

The Committee notes that the Legislature 
Information Management System (LIMS) 
project was under investigation to evaluate 
compliance and value for money. 
Resolution: The Speaker to submit the LIMS 
investigation report within seven days of 
finalisation thereof.

The evaluation 
audit report 
on LIMS was 
submitted to the 
Committee within 
the stipulated 
timeframe.
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11. �FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF GENERALLY 
RECOGNISED ACCOUNTING PRACTICE 
(GRAP)

Section 54 of the FAMLA prescribes that for each financial 
year, the Accounting Officer must prepare Annual Financial 
Statements in accordance with the standards of generally 
recognised accounting practice. 

In compliance with the provision, the annual Financial State-
ments have been prepared in accordance with the effective 
standards of GRAP including any interpretations, guidelines 
and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 
The annual Financial Statements have therefore been 
prepared on an accrual basis which necessitated adoption 
of new accounting policies consistent with GRAP. 

The adoption of GRAP and consequent transition from 
modified cash basis to accrual basis of accounting is a 
significant milestone in the history of the GPL. It is clear 
that this provision of FAMLA has provided an opportuni-
ty to strengthen the GPL by developing a solid financial 
management approach that ensures that the GPL become 
the example that it should be in terms of best practice in 
South Africa.

12. OTHER
There are no other facts or circumstances that may have an 
effect on the GPL’s financial of affairs.

13. APPROVAL
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 121 to 
162 have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

Peter Skosana
Secretary to the Legislature (Accounting 
Officer)
31 May 2011
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Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

Notes 2011 2010
Assets
Current Assets
Inventories 10 1,989,641 682,057

Trade receivables from exchange transactions 11 2,718,854 –

Other receivables from non‑exchange transactions 12 717,156 624,320

Prepayments 9 – 290,137

Unauthorised expenditure 33 2,638,196 2,638,196

Cash and cash equivalents 13 25,685,586 8,429,689

33,749,433 12,664,399

Non‑Current Assets
Heritage assets 3 27,478,517 24,738,154

Property, plant and equipment 4 33,732,969 27,778,876

Computer software and development costs 5 22,410,233 21,860,204

83,621,719 74,377,234

Total Assets 117,371,152 87,041,633

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligations 14 852,990 632,206

Operating lease liability 7 685,132 12,898

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 17 19,026,540 13,368,142

Provisions 15 15,525,722 10,778,602

13th cheque payable 675,917 626,133

SARS (UIF) 16 1,434,313 1,248,640

Voted funds 245,673 245,673

38,446,287 26,912,294

Non‑Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligations 14 245,052 799,325

Operating lease liability 7 35,638 720,770

280,690 1,520,095

Total Liabilities 38,726,977 28,432,389

Net Assets 78,644,175 58,609,244

Net Assets
Accumulated surplus 78,644,175 58,609,244
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Statement of Financial Performance
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Notes 2011 2010
Revenue 19 366,647,215 295,124,000

Other income 20 674,642 1,866,212

Operating expenses (341,445,659) (288,819,997)

Operating surplus 25,876,198 8,170,215

Investment revenue 22 934,531 763,137

Finance costs 23 (162,798) (129,656)

Surplus for the year 26,647,931 8,803,696

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Accumulated surplus Total net assets
Balance at 01 April 2009 as restated 49,805,548 49,805,548

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 8,803,696 8,803,696

Total changes 8,803,696 8,803,696

Opening balance as previously reported 58,609,244 58,609,244

Adjustments

Repayment to Provincial Treasury (6,613,000) (6,613,000)

Balance at 01 April 2010 as restated 51,996,244 51,996,244

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 26,647,931 26,647,931

Total changes 26,647,931 26,647,931

Balance at 31 March 2011 78,644,175 78,644,175
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Cash Flow Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Notes 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants 363,928,361 288,511,000

Interest income 934,531 763,137

Other receipts 547,254 1,735,866

365,410,146 291,010,003

Payments

Employee costs (178,472,288) (165,446,133)

Suppliers (157,745,204) (115,797,590)

(336,217,492) (281,243,723)

Net cash flows from operating activities 25 29,192,654 9,766,280

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (7,778,453) (2,841,546)

Purchase of heritage assets 3 (2,740,363) –

Purchase of computer software and development costs 5 (738,757) (1,993,081)

Net cash flows from investing activities (11,257,573) (4,834,627)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments (741,866) (269,097)

Distributions to owners 49,784 626,133

Operating leases 12,898 –

Net cash flows from financing activities (679,184) 357,036

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,255,897 5,288,689

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,429,689 3,141,000

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 25,685,586 8,429,689
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1. �Presentation of annual financial 
statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recog-
nised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpreta-
tions, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board. These annual financial statements have 
been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 
accordance with historical cost convention unless specified 
otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies are disclosed 
below. These accounting policies are inconsistent with the 
previous period. The changes are set out in note 28 ‑ First 
time adoption of Standards of GRAP.

1.1 �Significant judgements and sources of 
estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual Financial Statements, management 
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the annual Financial Statements 
and related disclosures. Use of available information and 
the application of judgement are inherent in the formation of 
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the annual Financial 
Statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade and other receivables
The GPL, assesses its trade receivables for impairment at 
the end of each reporting period. In determining whether 
an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, 
the GPL, makes judgements as to whether there is observ-
able data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a 
portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for 
national and industry‑specific economic conditions and other 
indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with 
defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied 
to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated 
loss emergence period.

Impairment testing
The recoverable (service) amounts of individual assets and 
cash‑generating units have been determined based on the 
higher of value in use calculations and fair values less costs 
to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and 

assumptions. GPL reviews and tests the carrying value of 
assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are 
indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are 
prepared of the recoverable service amount of each asset.

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an 
estimate based on the information available. Additional 
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in 
note 15 ‑ Provisions.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, 
software and development costs
The GPL’s management determines the estimated useful lives, 
residual value and related depreciation charges for property, 
plant and equipment, software and development costs. This 
estimate is based on the pattern in which an asset’s future 
economic benefits or service potential are expected to be 
consumed by the entity.

Effective interest rate and deferred payment 
terms
The GPL uses an appropriate interest rate, taking into 
account guidance provided in the accounting standards, and 
applying professional judgement to the specific circumstanc-
es, to discount future cash flows.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non‑current assets 
that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and 
are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recog-
nised as an asset when:

�� it is probable that future economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the item will flow to the GPL; 
and

�� the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the 
purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset 
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
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of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired 
at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at 
date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired 
in exchange for a non‑monetary asset or monetary assets, 
or a combination of monetary and non‑monetary assets, the 
asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If 
the acquired non‑monetary asset’s fair value is not determi-
nable, it is deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset 
given up.

When significant components of an item of property, 
plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct 
an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service it. 
If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount 
of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying 
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where 
the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where 
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using 
it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are 
expected to be used for more than one period are included 
in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts 
and stand by equipment which can only be used in connec-
tion with an item of property, plant and equipment are 
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continu-
ing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and 
which meet the recognition criteria above are included as 

a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant 
and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the 
previous inspection are derecognised. 

Subsequent to initial measurement property, plant and 
equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over 
their expected useful lives to their expected residual values. 
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their 
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, 
or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Depreciation commences when the asset is ready for its 
intended purpose. The useful lives of items of property, 
plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Average useful life
Leasehold property Over the lease period 

Plant and machinery 8 Years

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years

Motor vehicles 5 Years

Office equipment 8 Years

IT equipment 8 Years

Computer software 10 Years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of 
each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. 
If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change 
is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. The 
residual value of motor vehicles is estimated at 20% of the cost. 
 
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
surplus or deficit, unless it is included in the carrying amount 
of another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised 
on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service 
potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
property, plant and equipment is determined as the differ-
ence between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the 
carrying amount of the item. Such difference in recognised 
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in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.

Compensation from third parties for an item of property, 
plant and equipment that was impaired, lost or given up 
is recognised in surplus or deficit when the compensation 
becomes receivable.

Transitional provision
The GPL changed its accounting policy for property, plant 
and equipment in 2011. The change in accounting policy 
is made in accordance with the transitional provision as per 
Directive 8 of the GRAP Reporting Framework.

According to the transitional provision, the GPL is not 
required to measure property, plant and equipment for 
reporting periods beginning on or after a date within three 
years following the date of initial adoption of the Standard 
of GRAP on Property, plant and equipment. Library books 
have accordingly been recognised at provisional amounts, 
as disclosed in note 4. The transitional provision expires on 
30 June 2012.

The exemption from applying the measurement requirements 
of the Standard of GRAP on Property, plant and equipment 
implies that any associated presentation and disclosure 
requirements need not be complied with for library books 
not measured in accordance with the requirements of the 
Standard of GRAP on Property, plant and equipment.

1.3 �Computer software and development costs
An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:

�� is capable of being separated or divided from the entity 
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 
either individually or together with a related contract, 
assets or liability; or

�� arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regard-
less whether those rights are transferable or separate 
from the GPL or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

�� it is probable that the expected future economic benefits 
or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the GPL; and

�� the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Computer software and development costs are initially 
measured at cost. Where an intangible asset is acquired at 
no cost or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at 
the date of acquisition. Expenditure on the research phase 
of an internal project is recognised as an expense when it 
is incurred. An intangible asset arising from development (or 
from the development phase of an internal project) is recog-
nised when:

�� it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it 
will be available for use or sale;

�� there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;

�� there is an ability to use or sell it;

�� it will generate probable future economic benefits or 
service potential;

�� there are available technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development and to use or 
sell the asset; and

�� the expenditure attributable to the asset during its devel-
opment can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to initial measurement intangible assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful 
life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foresee-
able limit to the period over which the asset is expected to 
generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisa-
tion is not provided for these computer software and devel-
opment costs, but they are tested for impairment annually 
and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be 
impaired. For all other computer software and development 
costs amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over 
their expected useful lives to their estimated residual values.

The amortisation period, residual value, if any, and the 
amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting date. If the expectations differ 
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a 
change in accounting estimate.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite 
useful life after it was classified as indefinite, is an indicator 
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that the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is 
tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is 
amortised over its useful life. Internally generated brands, 
mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar 
in substance are not recognised as computer software and 
development costs.

The useful lives of intangible assets have been assessed as 
follows:

Item Useful life
Computer software and 
development cost 10 years

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no 
future economic benefits or service potential are expected 
from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intan-
gible asset is determined as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 
intangible asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or 
deficit when the intangible asset is derecognised.

1.4 Heritage assets
Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmen-
tal, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic 
significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of 
present and future generations.

Recognition
A heritage asset is recognised when, it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the asset will flow to the GPL, and the cost or fair value 
of the asset can be measured reliably.

Initial measurement
Heritage assets are initially measured at cost.

Where a heritage asset is acquired at no cost or for a 
nominal cost, or through a non‑exchange transaction, its 
cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial measurement heritage assets are 
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment
The GPL assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, the GPL estimates the recoverable amount or the recov-
erable service amount of the heritage asset.

Derecognition
Heritage assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no 
future economic benefits or service potential are expected 
from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage 
asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage 
asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when 
the heritage asset is derecognised.

1.5 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a 
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a 
residual interest of another entity.

A financial asset is:

�� cash;

�� a residual interest of another entity; or

�� a contractual right to:

§§ �receive cash or another financial asset from another 
entity; or

§§ �exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with 
another entity under conditions that are potentially 
favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obliga-
tion to:

�� deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; 
or

�� exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under 
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes 
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and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at 
amortised cost 

Other receivables from non 
exchange transactions  

Financial asset measured at 
amortised cost 

The GPL has the following types of financial liabilities (classes 
and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Trade and other payables from 
exchange transactions 

Financial liability measured at 
amortised cost 

Employee vendors Financial liability measured at 
amortised cost 

Initial recognition
The GPL recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in 
its statement of financial position when the GPL becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The GPL recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities
The GPL measures a financial asset and financial liability at 
amortised cost initially at its fair value, plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the 
financial asset or financial liability.

When the GPL enters into a concessionary loan agreement, 
it first assesses whether the substance of the concessionary 
loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the GPL analyses 
a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts 
for each component separately. The GPL accounts for that 
part of a concessionary loan that is:

�� a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for 
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, 
where it is the issuer of the loan; or

�� non‑exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard 
of GRAP on Revenue from Non‑exchange Transactions 
(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets 
and financial liabilities
The GPL measures all financial assets and financial liabilities 
after initial recognition using the following categories:

�� Financial instruments at fair value;

�� Financial instruments at amortised cost; and

�� Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are 
subject to an impairment review.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is 
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount 
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly 
or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment 
or uncollectibility.

Fair value measurement considerations
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active 
market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, 
the GPL establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. 
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market 
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if 
available, reference to the current fair value of another instru-
ment that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow 
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation 
technique commonly used by market participants to price 
the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to 
provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market 
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen 
valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs 
and relies as little as possible on entity‑specific inputs. It incor-
porates all factors that market participants would consider 
in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic 
methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, 
the GPL calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for 
validity using prices from any observable current market trans-
actions in the same instrument (that is, without modification or 
repackaging) or based on any available observable market 
data.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature 
(e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable 
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on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount 
could be required to be paid.

Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a 
financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is 
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus 
or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derec-
ognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Derecognition
Financial assets
The GPL derecognises financial assets using trade date 
accounting. The GPL derecognises a financial asset only 
when:

�� the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, are settled or waived;

�� the GPL transfers to another party substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

�� the GPL, despite having retained some significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 
transferred control of the asset to another party and the 
other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in 
its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to 
exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to 
impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, 
the GPL :

§§ derecognises the asset; and

§§ �recognises separately any rights and obligations 
created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset is allocated 
between the rights or obligations retained and those trans-
ferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer 
date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured 
at their fair values at that date. Any difference between the 
consideration received and the amounts recognised and 
derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period 
of the transfer.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differ-

ence between the carrying amount and the sum of the consid-
eration received, is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities
The GPL removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial 
liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 
extinguished — that is, when the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled, expired or waived.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 
liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or trans-
ferred to another party and the consideration paid, including 
any non‑cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are 
waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a 
non‑exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance 
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non‑exchange 
Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that 
is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 
surplus or deficit.

Gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or 
a component that is a financial liability, is recognised as 
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and 
the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 
when the GPL has a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultane-
ously.

1.6 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substan-
tially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A 
lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance leases ‑ lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the 
statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to 
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as 
a finance lease obligation.

Accounting Policies
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

PART 3: FINANCIAL INFORMATION  | 129Your View ~ Our Vision



The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the 
minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the 
lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The 
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease 
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the 
remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which 
they are incurred. The determination of whether an arrange-
ment is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfulment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or 
assets or the arrangement a right to use the asset. The classi-
fication of the lease is determined as follows:

Operating leases ‑ lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a 
straight‑line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as revenue and the contractu-
al receipts are recognised as an operating lease asset or 
liability.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction 
of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight‑line basis.

Any contingent rent is recognised separately as revenue 
when received or receivable and are not straight‑lined over 
the lease term.

Operating leases ‑ lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight‑line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset or liability.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as 
a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a 
straight‑line basis over the lease term.

Any contingent rent is recognised separately as an expense 

when paid or payable and is not straight‑lined over the lease 
term.

1.7 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inven-
tories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, 
then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently, inventories are measured at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current 
replacement cost where they are held for:

�� distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

�� consumption in the production process of goods to be 
distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the GPL incurs to acquire 
the asset at the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, 
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily inter-
changeable and goods or services produced and segregat-
ed for specific projects is assigned using specific identifica-
tion of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average 
cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the GPL.

The expenses are recognised when the goods are distrib-
uted, or related services are rendered. The amount of any 
write‑down of inventories to net realisable value or current 
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recog-
nised as an expense in the period the write‑down or loss 
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write‑down of 
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value 
or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in 

Accounting Policies
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

130  | GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE - ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011



the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the 
period in which the reversal occurs.

1.8 Impairment of cash‑generating assets
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service 
potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recog-
nition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or 
service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recog-
nised in the statement of financial position after deducting 
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impair-
ment losses thereon.

Identification
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is any indication that a cash‑generating asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates 
the recoverable amount of the asset.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash‑generating unit is 
the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

When the carrying amount of a cash‑generating asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impair-
ment, the entity also tests a cash‑generating intangible asset 
with an indefinite useful life or a cash‑generating intangible 
asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by 
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. 

This impairment test is performed at the same time every 
year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during 
the current reporting period, that intangible asset is tested for 
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.

Value in use
Value in use of a cash‑generating asset is the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived 
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at 
the end of its useful life.

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the entity 
estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived 
from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal 
and the entity applies the appropriate discount rate to those 
future cash flows.

Discount rate
The discount rate is a pre‑tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money, represented by the 
current risk‑free rate of interest and the risks specific to the 
asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been 
adjusted.

Recognition and measurement (individual asset)
If the recoverable amount of a cash‑generating asset is less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an 
impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus 
or deficit. After the recognition of an impairment loss, the 
depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash‑generating 
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash‑gener-
ating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value 
(if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of impairment loss
The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a cash‑generating asset may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a 
cash‑generating asset is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable 
amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. 
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a 
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined (net of deprecia-
tion or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recog-
nised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash‑generating asset 
is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the 
depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash‑generating 
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash‑gener-
ating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value 
(if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.9 �Impairment of non‑cash‑generating 
assets

Cash‑generating assets are those assets held by the GPL 
with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. 
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that 
adopted by a profit‑orientated entity, it generates a commer-
cial return.

Non‑cash‑generating assets are assets other than cash‑gener-
ating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service 
potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recog-
nition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or 
service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recog-
nised in the statement of financial position after deducting 
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses thereon.

Identification

The GPL assesses at each reporting date whether there is any 
indication that a non‑cash‑generating asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the GPL estimates the recover-
able service amount of the asset.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non‑cash‑gener-
ating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

When the carrying amount of a non‑cash‑generating asset 
exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, 
the entity also tests a non‑cash‑generating intangible asset 
with an indefinite useful life or a non‑cash‑generating intan-
gible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually 
by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service 
amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time 
every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised 
during the current reporting period, that intangible asset is 
tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting 
period.

Value in use
Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s 
remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of an 

asset is determined using the depreciated replacement cost 
approach.

Depreciated replacement cost approach
The present value of the remaining service potential of a 
non‑cash‑generating asset is determined as the depreciated 
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an 
asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. 
This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used 
condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduc-
tion (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement 
of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement 
cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of 
the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation 
calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already 
consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is 
determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the 
GPL will not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset 
if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned 
or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features 
which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset 
provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater 
capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or 
services the asset provides. The determination of the replace-
ment cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised 
basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non‑cash‑generating 
asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This 
reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or 
deficit.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the deprecia-
tion (amortisation) charge for the non‑cash‑generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non‑cash‑generating 
asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), 
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss
The GPL assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a non‑cash‑generating asset may no longer exist 
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the GPL 

Accounting Policies
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

132  | GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE - ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011



estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a 
non‑cash‑generating asset is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recov-
erable service amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal 
of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an 
asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deter-
mined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impair-
ment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non‑cash‑generating 
asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depre-
ciation (amortisation) charge for the non‑cash‑generating asset 
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non‑cash‑gener-
ating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value 
(if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.10 Share capital / contributed capital
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities.

1.11 Employee benefits
Short‑term employee benefits
Short‑term employee benefits are employee benefits (other 
than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service.

Short‑term employee benefits include items such as:

�� wages, salaries and social security contributions;

�� short‑term compensated absences (such as paid annual 
leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for 
the absences is due to be settled within twelve months 
after the end of the reporting period in which the 
employees render the related employee service;

�� bonus, incentive and performance related payments 
payable within twelve months after the end of the 

reporting period in which the employees render the 
related service; and 

�� non‑monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and 
free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, 
cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during 
a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted 
amount of short‑term employee benefits expected to be paid 
in exchange for that service:

�� as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any 
amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds 
the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the GPL recog-
nises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the 
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a 
reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

�� as an expense, unless another Standard requires or 
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an 
asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recog-
nised as an expense as the employees render services that 
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non‑accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs. The GPL measures the 
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as 
the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive 
and performance related payments when the GPL has 
a present legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate 
of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists 
when the entity has no realistic alternative, but to make the 
payments.

Post‑employment benefits: Defined contribution 
plans
When an employee has rendered services to the GPL during 
a reporting period, the GPL recognises the contribution 
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for those 
services:

�� as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribu-
tion already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds 

Accounting Policies
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

PART 3: FINANCIAL INFORMATION  | 133Your View ~ Our Vision



the contribution due for service before the reporting date, the 
GPL recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to 
the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a 
reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

�� as an expense, unless another Standard requires or 
permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an 
asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not 
fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period in which the employees render the related 
service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount 
reflects the time value of money. The currency and term of 
the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of 
money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of 
the obligation.

1.12 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:

�� the GPL has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event;

�� it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and

�� a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expendi-
ture expected to be required to settle the present obligation 
at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the 
amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre‑tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a 
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, 
the reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it 
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the 
GPL settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a 
separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 

does not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required, to 
settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision 
increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. A provision 
is used only for expenditures for which the provision was 
originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficits.

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obliga-
tion (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when the 
the GPL:

�� has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identify-
ing at least;

§§ �the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/
operating unit concerned;

§§ the principal locations affected;

§§ �the location, function, and approximate number of 
employees who will be compensated for services 
being terminated;

§§ the expenditures that will be undertaken; 

§§ when the plan will be implemented; and

�� has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will 
carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
plan or announcing its main features to those affected 
by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures 
arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 

�� necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and

�� not associated with the ongoing activities of the GPL.
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Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recog-
nised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 27 ‑ Contingen-
cies.

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity 
receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form 
of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity 
in exchange.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates.

Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The 
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all 
the following conditions are satisfied:

��  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

��  it is probable that the economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
GPL;

��  the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting 
date can be measured reliably; and

��  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to 
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering 
of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recog-
nised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are 
recoverable.

Interest
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding 
interest, royalties and dividends is recognised when:

��  it is probable that the economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
GPL; and

��  the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective 
interest rate method.

1.14 Revenue from non‑exchange transactions
Non‑exchange transactions are transactions that are not 
exchange transactions. In a non‑exchange transaction, the 
GPL either receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives 
value to another entity without directly receiving approximate-
ly equal value in exchange.

Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non‑exchange transaction 
recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to 
the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the 
same inflow. As the GPL satisfies a present obligation recog-
nised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a 
non‑exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces 
the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognis-
es an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement
Revenue from a non‑exchange transaction is measured at the 
amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the GPL 
When, as a result of a non‑exchange transaction, the GPL 
recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to 
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date 
of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. 

Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be 
measured as the best estimate of the amount required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount 
of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. 
When a liability is subsequently decreased the amount 
of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.                                                                                                                  
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless 
and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, 
including those set out in the Public Finance Management Act 
(Act No. 29 of 1999), and is recognised when the recovery 
thereof from the responsible board members or officials is 
virtually certain. 

Gifts and donations, including goods in‑kind
Gifts and donations, including goods in‑kind, are recognised 
as assets and revenue when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the GPL 
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and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

1.15 Conditional grants and receipts
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and 
funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the GPL 
has complied with any of the conditions embodied in the 
agreement. To the extent that the conditions have not been 
met a liability is recognised.

1.16 Borrowing costs
It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and 
only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link the 
borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the nature of 
the expenditure to be funded that is, capital or current.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred.

1.17 Comparative figures
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual 
Financial Statements is amended, prior period comparative 
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclas-
sification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been 
identified in the current period, the correction is made retro-
spectively as far as is practicable, and the prior period 
comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has 
been a change in accounting policy in the current period, 
the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practica-
ble, and the prior year comparatives are restated accord-
ingly.

1.18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:

�� overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; 
and

�� expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a 
vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accord-
ance with the purpose of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is 
recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. 
The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature 

of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequent-
ly accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial 
performance.

1.19 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the Public 
Finance Management Act (Act No. 29 of 1999) as expend-
iture other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contra-
vention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of 
any applicable legislation, including: 

�� this Act; or

�� the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 
1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

�� any provincial legislation providing for procurement 
procedures in that provincial government.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during 
the current financial and which was condoned before year 
end and/or before finalisation of the Financial Statements 
must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expend-
iture register. In such an instance the note to the Financial 
Statements must be updated to reflect this.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified 
during the current financial year and for which condone-
ment is being awaited at year end must be recorded in 
the irregular expenditure register. The note to the Financial 
Statements must be updated to reflect this. Where irregular 
expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and 
is only condoned in the following financial year, the register 
and the disclosure note to the Financial Statements must be 
updated with the amount condoned.

1.20 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in 
vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
recognised as an expense in the statement of financial perform-
ance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expendi-
ture is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, 
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 
revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.21 Budget information
The GPL is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form 
of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appro-
priation or similar.

A statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts 
and a reconciliation have been included in the annual 
financial statements, as the annual financial statements 
and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting. 
(Refer to note 37 ‑ Statement of comparison of budget and 
actual amounts and note 39 ‑ Reconciliation to cash flow 
statement).

1.22 Related parties
The GPL operates in an economic sector currently dominated 
by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional 
independence of the three spheres of government in South 
Africa, only entities within the national sphere of govern-
ment are considered to be related parties.

Key management is defined as being individuals with 
the authority and responsible for planning, directing and 

controlling the activities of the GPL, including those charged 
with the governance of the entity in accordance with legis-
lation, in instances where they are required to perform such 
functions. GPL regards all individuals at senior manage-
ment as key management per the definition of the financial 
reporting standard.

Close members of the family of a person are considered 
to be those family members who may be expected to 
influence, or be influenced by, that management in their 
dealings with the GPL. Only transactions with related parties 
not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business 
are disclosed.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minster 
of Finance.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual Financial Statements.

The impact of the amendment is set out in note 28 - First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP. 
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2. New standards and interpretations
2.1 �Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in 

the current year.

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements
The standard prescribes the basis for presentation of general 
purpose financial statements to ensure comparability with 
the entity’s financial statements of previous periods and with 
financial statements of other entities. The standard sets out 
overall considerations for the presentation of financial state-
ments, guidelines for their structure and minimum requirements 
for their content.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning 
on or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements
The objective of this standard is to require the provision of 
information about the historic changes in the cash and cash 
equivalents of an entity by means of a cash flow statement 
which classifies cash flows during the period from operating, 
investing and financing activities.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, change in account-
ing estimates and errors
The standard prescribes the criteria for selecting and changing 
accounting policies together with the accounting treatment 
and the disclosure of change in accounting policies, change 
in accounting estimates and corrections of accounting errors.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning 
on or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 4: The Effects of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates
The initial application of GRAP 4 will have no impact on the 
annual financial statements.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions
The definition of revenue in terms of GRAP 9 incorporates 
the concept of service potential. Revenue is the gross inflow 
of economic benefits or service potential when those inflows 
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating 
to contributions from owners.

Entities may derive revenue from exchange or non‑exchange 
transactions.

An exchange transaction is one in which the GPL receives 
resources or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value to the other party in exchange.

Non‑exchange revenue transaction is a transaction where 
an entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange.

An entity recognises revenue when it is probable that 
economic benefits or service potential will flow to the GPL 
and the GPL can measure the benefits reliably. 

GRAP 9 clarifies that this Standard only applies to revenue 
from exchange transactions.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 12: Inventories
GRAP 12 includes the definition of current replacement costs 
as the cost the GPL would incur to acquire the asset on 
the reporting date. GRAP 12 also includes the principal of 
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service potential associated with the item that will flow to the 
GPL as part of recognition criteria for inventories as well as 
the concept of goods purchased or produced for distribution 
at no charge or for a nominal consideration, which is specific 
to the public sector.

Initial measurement is required at cost (an exchange trans-
action) and where inventories are acquired at no cost or 
nominal consideration (non‑exchange transaction), their cost 
shall be their fair value at acquisition date.

Subsequent measurement shall be at lower of cost and net 
realisable value except if inventories are held for:

�� distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge, or

�� consumption in the production process of goods to be 
distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

If the above applies then subsequent measurement shall be at 
the lower of cost or current replacement cost.

The retail method of measurement of cost is excluded from 
GRAP 12.

The following ASB Directive also needs to be considered:

Directive 8 ‑ Transitional provisions for parliament and provin-
cial legislatures requires retrospective application of the 
Standard.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 13: Leases
GRAP 13 incorporates additional guidance on the concept 
of substance and legal form of a transaction, to illustrate the 
difference between lease and other contracts and on operating 
lease incentives.

In certain circumstances, legislation may prohibit the entering 
into certain types of lease agreements. If the GPL has contra-
vened these legislative requirements, the GPL is still required to 

apply the requirements of GRAP 13.

Other than the abovementioned requirements, there is no other 
impact on the initial adoption of GRAP 13.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or 
after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2011 
annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 14: Events after the reporting date
An event, which could be favourable or unfavourable, that 
occurs between the reporting date and the date the annual 
financial statements are authorised for issue.

GRAP 14 requires the date of authorisation for issue is the date 
on which the annual financial statements have received approval 
from management to be issued to the executive authority.

Two types of events can be identified:

�� those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the 
reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); 
and 

�� those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the 
reporting date (non‑adjusting events after the reporting 
date).

An entity shall adjust the amounts recognised in its annual 
financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting 
date.

An entity shall not adjust the amounts recognised in its annual 
financial statements to reflect non‑adjusting events after the 
reporting date.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or 
after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2011 
annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

PART 3: FINANCIAL INFORMATION  | 139Your View ~ Our Vision



GRAP 17: Property, Plant and Equipment
GRAP 17 does not require or prohibit the recognition of 
heritage assets but if an entity recognises heritage assets the 
GPL needs to comply with GRAP 17 disclosure requirements.

Additional commentary has been included to clarify the 
applicability of infrastructure assets to be recognised in terms 
of GRAP 17.

Where an entity acquires an asset through a non‑exchange 
transaction, that is, for a nominal or no consideration, its cost 
is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

The disclosure requirement for temporarily idle, fully depreci-
ated property, plant and equipment and for property, plant 
and equipment that are retired from active use is required in 
GRAP 17 whereas IAS 16 only encourages this disclosure.

The following ASB Directive also needs to be considered:

Directive 8 ‑ Transitional provisions for parliament and provin-
cial legislatures requires retrospective application of the 
Standard.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non‑exchange Trans-
actions
Revenue from non‑exchange transactions arises when an 
entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. An asset 
acquired through a non‑exchange transaction shall initially 
be measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

An inflow of resources from a non‑exchange transaction 
recognised as an asset shall be recognised as revenue, 
except to the extent that a liability is recognised for the same 
inflow. As an entity satisfies a present obligation recog-
nised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from 
a non‑exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it will 
reduce the carrying amount of the liability recognised as 
recognise an amount equal to that reduction.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information 
in the Financial Statements
An entity should present a comparison of the budget 
amounts for which it is held publicly accountable and actual 
amounts either as a separate additional financial statement 
or as additional budget columns in the financial statements 
currently presented in accordance with Standards of GRAP. 
The comparison of budget and actual amounts shall present 
separately for each level of legislative oversight:

�� the approved and final budget amounts;

�� the actual amounts on a comparable basis; and

��  by way of note disclosure, an explanation of material 
differences between the budget for which the GPL is 
held publicly accountable and actual amounts, unless 
such explanation is included in other public documents 
issued in conjunction with the financial statements, and a 
cross reference to those documents is made in the notes.

Where an entity prepares its budget and annual financial 
statements on a comparable basis, it includes the compari-
son as an additional column in the primary annual financial 
statements. 

Where the budget and annual financial statements are not 
prepared on a comparable basis, a separate statement is 
prepared called the ‘Statement of Comparison of Budget 
and Actual Amounts’. This statement compares the budget 
amounts with the amounts in the annual financial statements 
adjusted to be comparable to the budget.

A comparable basis means that the budget and annual 
financial statements:

�� are prepared using the same basis of accounting that is, 
either cash or accrual;

�� include the same activities and entities;
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�� use the same classification system; and

�� are prepared for the same period.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 102: Intangible Assets
GRAP 102 excludes guidance on accounting for intangi-
ble assets acquired as part of an entity combination and 
in‑process research and development costs acquired in an 
entity combination.

The recognition criteria includes the concept of the probable 
flow of service potential.

GRAP 102 distinguishes between impairment loss of cash 
generating and non‑cash‑generating assets.

Intangible assets acquired at no or for a nominal cost shall be 
measured on acquisition date at its fair value.

In GRAP 102 the identifiability criterion in the definition of 
an intangible asset has been expanded to include contrac-
tual rights arising from binding arrangements, and to exclude 
rights granted by statute.

Additional guidance included in GRAP 102 to explain that 
distinction should be made between assets associated with 
the item of property, plant and equipment and the intangible 
asset.

Guidance on web site costs has been included in GRAP 102 
from SIC 32 Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs.

The following ASB Directive also needs to be considered: 
 
Directive 8 ‑ Transitional provisions for parliament and provincial 
legislatures requires retrospective application of the Standard. 
 
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 103: Heritage Assets
GRAP 103 defines heritage assets as assets which have a 
cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, techno-
logical or artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the 
benefit of present and future generations.

The standard required judgment in applying the initial recog-
nition criteria to the specific circumstances surrounding the 
entity and the assets.

GRAP 103 states that a heritage asset should not be depre-
ciated but an entity should assess at each reporting date 
whether there is an indication that it may be impaired.

The following ASB Directive also needs to be considered:

Directive 8 ‑ Transitional provisions for parliament and provin-
cial legislatures requires retrospective application of the 
Standard.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

IGRAP 1: Interpretation of GRAP: Applying 
the Probability Test on Initial Recognition of 
Exchange Revenue
An entity assesses the probability of each transaction on an 
individual basis when it occurs. Entities shall not assess the 
probability on an overall level based on the payment history 
of recipients of the service in general when the probability of 
revenue is assessed at initial recognition.

The full amount of revenue will be recognised at initial recog-
nition. Assessing impairment is an event that takes place 
subsequently to initial recognition. Such impairment is an 
expense. Revenue is not reduced by this expense.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

PART 3: FINANCIAL INFORMATION  | 141Your View ~ Our Vision



The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning 
on or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the interpretation for the first time in 
the 2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the interpretation is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 21: Impairment of Non‑cash‑generating 
Assets
Non‑cash‑generating assets are assets other than cash‑gener-
ating assets.

When the carrying amount of a non‑cash‑generating asset 
exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a 
non‑cash‑generating asset is determined using one of the 
following approaches:

��  Depreciated replacement cost approach;

��  Restoration cost approach; and

��  Service units approach.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 26: Impairment of Cash‑generating 
Assets
Cash‑generating assets are those assets held by an entity 
with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. 
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that 
adopted by a profit‑orientated entity, it generates a commer-
cial return.

When the carrying amount of a cash‑generating asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on 
or after 01 April 2010.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

GRAP 25: Employee Benefits
The objective of GRAP 25 is to prescribe the accounting and 
disclosure for employee benefits.

GRAP 25 must be applied by an employer in accounting for 
all employee benefits, except share based payment transac-
tions.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister 
of Finance.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the standard is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

IAS 39: Financial Instruments
The standard prescribes recognition, measurement, presen-
tation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments. 
Financial instruments are defined as those contracts that 
results in a financial asset in one entity and a financial 
liability or residual interest in another entity. A key distinguish-
ing factor between financial assets and financial liabilities 
and other assets and liabilities, is that they are settled in cash 
or by exchanging financial instruments rather than through the 
provision of goods or services.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recog-
nised at fair value. Where an entity subsequently measures 
financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost or 
cost, transactions costs are included in the cost of the asset 
or liability.

Concessionary loans are loans either received by or granted 
to another entity on concessionary terms, e.g. at low interest 
rates and flexible repayment terms. On initial recognition, the 
fair value of a concessionary loan is the present value of the 
agreed contractual cash flows, discounted using a market 
related rate of interest for a similar transaction. The differ-
ence between the proceeds either received or paid and the 
present value of the contractual cash flows is accounted for 
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as non‑exchange revenue by the recipient of a concessionary 
loan in accordance with Standard of GRAP on Revenue from 
Non‑exchange Revenue Transactions (Taxes and Transfers), 
and using the Framework for the Preparation and Presenta-
tion of Financial Statements (usually as an expense) by the 
grantor of the loan.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured either at fair value or, amortised cost or cost. An 
entity measures a financial instrument at fair value if it is:

�� a derivative;

�� a combined instrument designated at fair value, that is, 
an instrument that includes a derivative and a non‑deriv-
ative host contract;

�� held‑for‑trading;

�� a non‑derivative instrument with fixed or determinable 
payments that is designated at initial recognition to be 
measured at fair value;

�� an investment in a residual interest for which fair value 
can be measured reliably; and

�� other instruments that do not meet the definition of 
financial instruments at amortised cost or cost.

IAS 39 requires extensive disclosures on the significance 
of financial instruments for an entity’s statement of financial 
position and statement of financial performance, as well as 
the nature and extent of the risks that an entity is exposed 
to as a result of its annual financial statements. Some disclo-
sures, for example the disclosure of fair values for instruments 
measured at amortised cost or cost and the preparation of 
a sensitivity analysis, are encouraged rather than required.

IAS 39 does not prescribe principles for hedge accounting. 
An entity is permitted to apply hedge accounting, as long as 
the principles in IAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition 
and measurement are applied.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister 
of Finance.

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 
2011 annual financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is set out in note 28 ‑ First time 
adoption of Standards of GRAP.

2.2 �Standards and interpretations issued, but 
not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and inter-
pretations:

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting
Segments are identified by the way in which information is 
reported to management, both for purposes of assessing 
performance and making decisions about how future 
resources will be allocated to the various activities under-
taken by the entity. The major classifications of activities 
identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the 
segments for which an entity reports information to manage-
ment.

Segment information is either presented based on service or 
geographical segments. Service segments relate to a distin-
guishable component of an entity that provides specific 
outputs or achieves particular operating objectives that 
are in line with the entity’s overall mission. Geographical 
segments relate to specific outputs generated, or particular 
objectives achieved, by an entity within a particular region.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister 
of Finance.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time 
once it becomes effective.

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.

GRAP 105: Transfer of Functions Between 
Entities Under Common Control
The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the aquirer and transferor in a transfer of 
functions between entiries of common control.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister 
of Finance.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time 
once it becomes effective.
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It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on 
the entity’s annual financial statements.

GRAP 106: Transfer of Functions Between 
Entities Not Under Common Control
The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between 
entities not under common control.

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister 
of Finance.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time once 
it becomes effective.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on 

the entity’s annual financial statements.

GRAP 107: Mergers
The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting 
principles for the combined entity and combining entities in 
a merger. 

This Standard has been approved by the Board but its 
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister 
of Finance.

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time once 
it becomes effective.

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on 
the entity’s annual financial statements.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2011 2010

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

3. Heritage assets

Heritage assets 27,478,517 – 27,478,517 24,738,154 – 24,738,154 

Reconciliation of heritage assets ‑ 2011

Opening 
balance Additions Total

Heritage assets 24,738,154 2,740,363 27,478,517 

Reconciliation of heritage assets ‑ 2010

Opening balance Total
Heritage assets 24,738,154 24,738,154 

Heriatge assets consists of paintings, artwork with a carrying amount of R1,938,154 (2010: R1,938,154) and the main provin-
cial parliament building with a carrying amount of R25,540,363 (2010: R22,800,000).
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2011 2010

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
deprecia-
tion and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
deprecia-
tion and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

4. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold equipment 2,248,736 (1,329,871) 918,865 1,840,359 (623,075) 1,217,284

Plant and machinery 7,492,282 (288,084) 7,204,198 6,672,106 (213,937) 6,458,169

Furniture and fixtures 8,097,700 (214,219) 7,883,481 6,544,673 (154,567) 6,390,106

Motor vehicles 5,550,148 (1,055,477) 4,494,671 2,789,471 (714,935) 2,074,536

Office equipment 323,041 (10,418) 312,623 275,276 (7,253) 268,023

IT equipment 13,410,877 (491,746) 12,919,131 11,729,538 (358,780) 11,370,758

Total 37,122,784 (3,389,815) 33,732,969 29,851,423 (2,072,547) 27,778,876

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment ‑ 2011

Opening balance Additions Depreciation Total
Leasehold equipment 1,217,284 408,377 (706,796) 918,865
Plant and machinery 6,458,169 820,175 (74,146) 7,204,198
Furniture and fixtures 6,390,106 1,553,027 (59,652) 7,883,481
Motor vehicles 2,074,536 2,760,677 (340,542) 4,494,671
Office equipment 268,023 47,765 (3,165) 312,623
IT equipment 11,370,758 1,681,339 (132,966) 12,919,131

27,778,876 7,271,360 (1,317,267) 33,732,969

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment ‑ 2010
Leasehold equipment 79,439 1,636,905 (499,060) 1,217,284
Plant and machinery 6,423,124 104,134 (69,089) 6,458,169
Furniture and fixtures 6,019,052 423,823 (52,769) 6,390,106
Motor vehicles 1,475,033 894,050 (294,547) 2,074,536
Office equipment 180,352 90,161 (2,490) 268,023
IT equipment 9,935,426 1,557,302 (121,970) 11,370,758

24,112,426 4,706,375 (1,039,925) 27,778,876

Assets subject to finance lease (net carrying amount)
Leasehold equipment 918,865 1,217,284
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Transitional provisions

Property, plant and equipment recognised at provisional amounts

The GPL has made use of the transitional provision for GRAP 17: Property plant and equipment, included in Directive 8 for 
the measurement of its library books. The library books have been recorded at a nominal carrying value of zero, ie provi-
sional amounts. Steps taken to establish the values of the library books recognised at provisional amounts due to the initial 
adoption of GRAP 17, are as follows: A valuator has been contracted to perform a valuation in the next financial year of all 
the library books that could not be valued.

The GPL expects to fully comply with the measurement requirements of GRAP 17: Property plant and equipment, in the next 
financial period.

2011 2010

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisa-
tion and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
amortisa-
tion and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

5. Computer software and development costs

Computer software 22,845,024 (434,791) 22,410,233 22,106,267 (246,063) 21,860,204

Reconciliation of computer software and development costs ‑ 2011

Opening 
balance Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software 21,860,204 738,757 (188,728) 22,410,233

Reconciliation of computer software and development costs ‑ 2010

Computer software 20,700,733 1,310,587 (151,116) 21,860,204
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2011
Loans and receivables Total

6. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Trade receivables from exchange transactions 2,718,854 2,718,854

Other receivables from non‑exchange transactions 717,156 717,156

Cash and cash equivalents 25,685,586 25,685,586

29,121,596 29,121,596

2010
Loans and receivables Total

Other receivables from non‑exchange transactions 624,320 624,320

Cash and cash equivalents 8,429,689 8,429,689

9,054,009 9,054,009

2011 2010

7. Operating lease liability 
Current liabilities (720,770) (733,668)

8. Employee benefit obligations
Defined contribution plan
It is the policy of the GPL to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. A number of defined 
contribution provident funds, all of which are subject to the Pensions Fund Act exist for this purpose.

The GPL is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits

The total economic entity contribution to such schemes for the 
year 24,617,457 20,666,220

The amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution 
plans for the year 24,617,457 20,666,220

9. Prepayments 
The prepayment for the period ended 31 March 2010 relates to professional fees paid to internal auditors for services to be rendered. 
There were no prepayments in the current year.
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2011 2010
10. Inventories
Consumable stores 1,989,641 682,057

11. Trade receivables from exchange transactions
Direct charges claims 2,718,854 –

12. Other receivables from non‑exchange transactions
UIF receivable from members 717,156 624,320

13. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 5,900 5,900

Bank balances 25,679,686 8,423,789

25,685,586 8,429,689

14. Finance lease obligations
Minimum lease payments due
‑ within one year 959,046 774,989

‑ in second to fifth year inclusive 205,072 842,789

1,164,118 1,617,778

less: future finance charges (66,076) (186,247)

Present value of minimum lease payments 1,098,042 1,431,531

Present value of minimum lease payments due
‑ within one year 852,990 632,206

‑ in second to fifth year inclusive 245,052 799,325

1,098,042 1,431,531

Non‑current liabilities 245,052 799,325

Current liabilities 852,990 632,206

1,098,042 1,431,531

It is GPL’s policy to lease certain equipment, cellphones and 3G devices under finance leases. 

The average lease term is 2‑5 years and the interest rate used is the prime interest rate applicable for each financial year.

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been 
entered into for contingent rent. 

The GPL’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note 4.
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15. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions ‑ 2011

Opening Balance Additions Utilised during 
the year Total

Bonus provision 4,707,754 8,730,797 (4,707,754) 8,730,797

Leave pay provision 6,070,848 724,077 – 6,794,925

10,778,602 9,454,874 (4,707,754) 15,525,722

Reconciliation of provisions ‑ 2010

Bonus provision 4,707,754 4,707,754 (4,707,754) 4,707,754

Leave pay provision 3,793,954 2,276,894 – 6,070,848

8,501,708 6,984,648 (4,707,754) 10,778,602

The leave pay provision represents the potential liability in respect of leave outstanding. 

The bonus pay provision represents the potential liability in respect of performance bonuses to be paid out.

2011 2010

16.SARS (UIF)
The amount payable to SARS is the UIF for members that has not yet been deducted from them. The liability to SARS regarding members 
is still under discussion.

17. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 19,026,544 13,368,144

It is the policy of the GPL to pay all suppliers within 30 days. All the payables at year end were within 30 days. The amount 
disclosed therefore approximates the fair value of the trade payables.
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18. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

2011
Financial liabilities 
at amortised cost Total

Trade and other payables 19,026,545 19,026,545

2010
Financial liabilities 
at amortised cost Total

Trade and other payables 13,368,144 13,368,144

2011 2010
19. Revenue

Equitable share 310,148,001 232,648,000

Direct charges claim 56,499,214 62,476,000

366,647,215 295,124,000

20. Other revenue

Sundry income 4,440 572,930

Finance lease interest accrued – 37,510

City hall booking revenue 138,368 320,940

Parking income 263,281 –

Aid assistance 128,000 480,000

Insurance refund 130,421 392,832

Foreign currency refund 10,132 –

Gain on sale of assets – 62,000

674,642 1,866,212

21. Employees and members related costs

Basic benefits 53,849,461 44,125,679

Performance bonus 8,308,408 5,769,384

Medical aid ‑ company contributions 4,872,424 3,997,984

UIF 1,141,395 996,136

13th cheque payable 675,917 626,133

Leave pay provision charge 724,077 2,276,894
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2011 2010
Cellphone allowance 212,798 9,381

Post‑employment benefits ‑ pension ‑ defined contribution plan 14,572,983 11,096,366

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 11,111,300 11,346,568

Overtime payments 4,352,853 4,453,677

PAYE 21,753,822 14,105,633

121,575,438 98,803,835

Remuneration of provincial secretary

Annual remuneration 730,315 526,163

Car allowance 229,952 239,937

Performance bonuses 114,976 101,016

Contributions pension funds 169,015 157,958

Contribution to medical aid 20,478 62,410

1,264,736 1,087,484

Remuneration of chief finance officer

Annual remuneration 606,713 443,502

Car allowance 256,973 239,937

Performance bonuses 102,789 135,463

Contributions to pension funds 92,510 96,458

Contribution to medical aid 71,696 66,856

1,130,681 982,216

Remuneration of executive director ‑ Corporate services

Annual remuneration 683,005 548,139

Car allowance 382,013 369,452

Performance bonuses 109,147 96,733

Contribution to medical aid 26,448 24,666

1,200,613 1,038,990

Remuneration of executive director ‑ Core business

Annual remuneration 675,874 549,408

Car allowance 109,147 141,663

Performance bonuses 95,477 83,884

Contributions to pension funds 65,501 61,216

Contribution to medical aid 65,501 66,886

1,011,500 903,057
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2011 2010
Remuneration of members

Speaker 1,420,489 1,303,201

Deputy Speaker 1,116,082 1,023,928

Chief Whip 1,014,652 930,873

Political office bearers 14,611,568 13,405,108

Members 9,874,749 16,923,929

Members’ pension and medical aid contributions 12,588,041 11,827,250

Members’ allowances 15,873,634 15,581,834

56,499,214 60,996,123

22. Investment revenue
Interest revenue

Bank 934,531 763,137

22. Investment revenue
Interest revenue

Bank 934,531 763,137

The amount included in investment revenue arising from non‑exchange transactions amounted to R934,531.

23. Finance costs

Finance leases 162,798 129,656

24. Auditors’ remuneration

Fees 1,160,328 1,198,387

25. Cash generated from operations

Surplus 26,647,931 8,803,696

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 1,505,997 1,191,041

Finance lease payments 726,877 361,244

Interest on finance leases 128,248 129,657

Finance lease accrued interest 34,550 (37,513)

UIF for members 185,672 185,673

Movements in operating lease assets and accruals – 328,178

Movements in provisions 4,747,118 1,769,415

Changes in working capital:

Inventories (1,307,584) (682,057)

Trade receivables from exchange transactions (2,718,854) –
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2011 2010
Other receivables from non‑exchange transactions (92,838) (92,836)

Prepayments 290,137 229,836

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 5,658,400 (2,420,054)

Voted funds (6,613,000) –

29,192,654 9,766,280

26. Commitments
Authorised expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
�� Property, plant and equipment 282,784 –

�� Current expenditure 1,167,347 1,117,416

1,450,131 1,117,416
This committed capital expenditure relates to purchase of a motor vehicle and will be financed by existing cash resources.

Operating leases ‑ as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due
 ‑ within one year 641,592 2,785,665

 ‑ in second to fifth year inclusive 234,377 875,970

875,969 3,661,635
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the GPL for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average 
term of 3 years and rentals escalate at an average of 11% annually. No contingent rent is payable.

27. Contingencies
Contingent liabilities 

High court litigation between the GPL and Member Bloom.

Mr Bloom challenged his suspension from the House, stating that the Speaker did not apply the necessary rules should his 
case be successful his suspension will be uplifted and the GPL will be liable for the settlement of attorney and counsel fees 
estimated to the value of R150,000. 

Contractual dispute between the GPL and Orion. 

This claim emanates from a contractual dispute between the GPL and Orion. The GPL is of the opinion that there was an 
agreement with Orion to terminate their contract in February 2009. The GPL had settled all outstanding payment before the 
end of the contract. The GPL received summons in the current financial period wherein Orion is claiming R120,000 for the 
period between February 2009 and October 2009. The GPL held a meeting with Orion and the reasons are not clear as 
to their claims. The matter is yet to go to trial as the attorneys are still raising technical issues.

Settlement agreement between the GPL and employee.

The employee alleges that the GPL promised him a promotion. The court case was postponed as there has been correspond-
ence between the employee’s attorney and the GPL’s legal services. Should the employee’s settlement be successful, the 
potential financial effect for the GPL will be R500,000. 
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Labour matter between the GPL and employee.

The GPL has a potential liability with regard to the reinstatement of an ex‑employee to her previous position.

The compensation amount of R120,000, which is the equivalent of 6 months salary, will be payable. Further legal costs to 
the amount of R17,321 in respect of the respondent’s attorneys are also payable. The potential liability for the applicant’s 
attorneys should the GPL lose the matter on appeal cannot be determined.

Interest and penalties levied on late payments of PAYE and UIF for employees.

The GPL is disputing the interest and penalties levied by SARS. The outstanding interest and penalties dates back from 1997. 
The GPL has provided SARS with proof of payments from 1999 and requested SARS to waive all penalties and the discount-
ing of levied interest on the GPL account dating back from 1997. SARS has not responded to the GPL’s communiqué. The 
potential obligation for the GPL is R844,095.

Interest on late payment of UIF for members.

The amount payable to SARS is the UIF for members that has not yet been deducted from them. The liability to SARS 
regarding members is still under discussion. If this is successful, there is likely to be interest and penalties charged and the 
amounts payable for interest have been estimated as follows:

2011 2010
Interest 697,366 570,336

Contingent asset

High Court Order: Provisionally winding up of Monitoring South Africa (Pty) Ltd. 

The GPL renewed its annual subscription with Monitoring SA during August 2010 amounting to R107,114. The North 
Gauteng High Court, Pretoria issued an order on 15 March 2011 to provisionally wind up Monitoring SA. The GPL 
received the order during May 2011. GPL is in the process of filing a claim with liquidators for reimbursement of the amount 
of R107,114 paid for annual subscription.

Notes As reported under 
previous basis

Effects of 
transition to 

GRAP
GRAP

28. First‑time adoption of standards of GRAP
The GPL reported on the modified cash basis in the previous year. On principle these standards of GRAP adopted in the current year 
have been applied retrospectively and the 2010 comparatives contained in these annual financial statements differ from those published 
in the annual financial statements published for the year ended 31 March 2010.
The date of transition was 1 April 2010 and the effect of the transition was as follows.

Reconciliation of net assets at 01 April 2010 (date of transition to the new standards)

Property, plant and equipment 4 25,157,132 2,621,744 27,778,876

Heritage assets 3 37,652,367 (12,914,213) 24,738,154

Intangible assets 5 24,413,446 (2,553,242) 21,860,204

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

154  | GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE - ANNUAL REPORT 2010/2011



Notes As reported under 
previous basis

Effects of 
transition to 

GRAP
GRAP

Total non‑current assets 87,222,945 (12,845,711) 74,377,234

Trade and other receivables 11 – 624,320 624,320

Prepayments 9 290,137 – 290,137

Inventories 10 1,000 681,057 682,057

Unauthorised expenditure 33 2,638,196 – 2,638,196

Cash and cash equivalents 13 8,429,689 – 8,429,689

Total current assets 11,359,022 1,305,377 12,664,399

Voted funds 245,673 – 245,673

Trade and other payables 17 4,955,187 8,412,955 13,368,142

Provisions 15 8,412,802 2,365,800 10,778,602

SARS (UIF) 186,321 1,062,319 1,248,640

13th cheque payable 626,475 (342) 626,133

Finance lease liabilities 14 2,114,689 (683,158) 1,431,531

Operating lease liabilities 7 4,500,448 (3,766,780) 733,668

Total liabilities 21,041,595 7,390,794 28,432,389

Total assets less total liabilities 77,540,372 (18,931,128) 58,609,244

Accumulated surplus 6,157,162 52,452,082 58,609,244

Reconciliation of net assets at 31 March 2011

Property, plant and equipment 4 – 33,732,969 33,732,969

Heritage assets 3 – 27,478,517 27,478,517

Intangible assets 5 – 22,410,233 22,410,233

Total non‑current assets – 83,621,719 83,621,719

Trade and other receivables 11 – 3,436,010 3,436,010

Inventories 10 – 1,989,641 1,989,641

Unauthorised expenditure 33 2,638,196 – 2,638,196

Cash and cash equivalents 13 25,685,586 – 25,685,586

Total current assets 28,323,782 5,425,651 33,749,433

Voted funds 245,673 – 245,673
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Notes As reported under 
previous basis

Effects of 
transition to 

GRAP
GRAP

Trade and other payables 17 – 19,026,540 19,026,540

Provisions 15 – 15,525,722 15,525,722

SARS (UIF) – 1,434,313 1,434,313

13th cheque payable – 675,917 675,917

Finance lease liability 14 – 1,098,042 1,098,042

Operating lease liability 7 – 720,770 720,770

Total liabilities 245,673 38,481,304 38,726,977

Total assets less total liabilities 28,078,109 50,566,066 78,644,175

Accumulated surplus 28,323,782 50,320,393 78,644,175

Notes
Changes in non current assets
The change in non current assets is as a result of the recognition of property, plant and equipment, heritage assets and 
software and development costs.

Changes in current assets.
The main changes in current assets were as a result of the following:

Inventory ‑ the recognition of closing inventory as an asset.

Trade and other receivables ‑ the recognition of members’ contributions to UIF that have not been deducted from members.

Changes in liabilities 
This is as a result of recognising the accruals for the period.

Provisions: The provisions are an estimation of the perfomance bonus due, 13th cheque due and leave pay provision.

UIF for members: This is amount due to SARS for the UIF calculated on members. The GPL has not deducted or remitted and 
UIF for members to SARS.

Finance and operating lease liabilities: This is the recognition of the obligation the GPL has on their finance leases.

Notes As reported under 
previous basis

Effects of 
transition to 

GRAP
GRAP

Reconciliation of surplus or deficit for 2011
Revenue 19 366,647,215 - 366,647,215

Other income 20&22 1,516,334 92,839 1,609,173

Operating surplus 368,163,549 92,839 368,256,388
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Administrative expenses (339,769,047) (1,676,612) (341,445,659)

Finance costs 23 - (162,798) (162,798)

Accumulated surplus 28,394,502 (1,746,571) 26,647,931

Accumulated surplus 28,394,502 (1,746,571) 26,647,931

Notes
The significant differences in administrative cost are as follows:

Recognition of provisions increasing expenditure. 

Recognition of depreciation also increasing expenditure.

Recognition of accruals, expenses incurred but not yet paid for has increased expenditure.

Recognition of interest on UIF contributions for members outstanding to SARS.

Capital expenditure has not been expensed in the current year but capitalised instead. This has decresed the operating 
expenditure in the current year.

Notes As reported under 
previous basis

Effects of 
transition to 

GRAP
GRAP

Reconciliation of surplus or deficit for 2010
Revenue 19 295,124,000 - 295,124,000

Other income 20&22 2,499,002 130,347 2,629,349

Operating surplus 297,623,002 130,347 297,753,349

Administrative expenses (294,024,610) 5,204,613 (288,819,997)

Finance costs 23 - (129,656) (129,656)

Net surplus 3,598,392 5,205,304 8,803,696

Accumulated surplus / loss 3,598,392 5,205,304 8,803,696

Notes
The significant differences in administrative cost are as follows:

Recognition of provisions increasing expenditure. 

Recognition of depreciation also increasing expenditure.

Recognition of accruals, expenses incurred but not yet paid for has increased expenditure.

Recognition of interest on UIF contributions for members outstanding to SARS.

Capital expenditure has not been expensed in the current year but capitalised instead. This has decresed the operating 
expenditure in the current year.
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2011 2010

29. Related parties
Controlled entities      Provincial Treasury

Refer to Note 21 for remuneration of key management and members. 

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties

Provincial Treasury 2,718,854 (245,673)

Related party transactions

Revenue received from Provincial Treasury

Voted funds 310,148,001 232,648,000

Direct charges claim 56,499,214 62,476,000

Amounts paid to Political parties

Political party funding 49,229,356 36,484,000

The legislature receives a grant from Provincial Treasury based on the approved budget for all their operating expenditure.

30.Risk management
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate 
amount of committed credit facilities. 

The GPL’s liquidity risk is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The GPL manages liquidity risk through 
an ongoing review of future commitments and managing available cash resources.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate funding is requested from Provincial Treasury on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. GPL only deposits cash with major 
commercial banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter‑party.

31. Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

32. Events after the reporting date
High Court Order: Provisionally Wound up Monitoring South Africa (Pty) Ltd.

The GPL renewed its annual subscription with Monitoring SA during August 2010 amounting to R107,114. The North 
Gauteng High Court, Pretoria issued an order on 15 March 2011 to provisionally wound up Monitoring SA. The GPL 
received the order during May 2011. The GPL is in the process of filing a claim with liquidators for reimbursement of the 
amount of R107,114 paid for annual subscriptions.
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2011 2010

33. Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure 2,638,196 2,638,196

The unauthorised expenditure was recommended for approval by the Public Accounts Committee, in line with the Gauteng Unauthorised 
Expenditure Act, No 2 of 2004. The amount will be written off upon receipt of funds from Provincial Treasury.

34. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – 101,000

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure was in respect of the cancellation of costs paid to a service provider for a woman’s dinner event 
that was postponed. The expenditure was condoned in the current year.

35. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 306,000 –

Add: Irregular expenditure ‑ current year – 306,000

306,000 306,000

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year – 306,000

Prior years 306,000 –

306,000 306,000

Details of irregular expenditure not recoverable (not condoned)

Irregular expenditure constitutes a deviation from the normal procurement procedure 
whereby officials obtained goods and services directly from service providers 
excluding supply chain management in the aquisition of such goods and services.

306,000

36. Reconciliation to cash flow statement
Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the net cash generated from operating, investing and financing activities:

Operating activities

Actual amount as presented in the budget statement 30,934,828 6,280,594

Basis differences (1,742,174) 4,111,819

Net cash flows from operating activities 29,192,654 10,392,413
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2011 2010

Investing activities

Actual amount as presented in the budget statement (10,750,480) (6,016,962)

Basis differences (507,093) 1,182,335

Net cash flows from investing activities (11,257,573) (4,834,627)

Financing activities

Actual amount as presented in the budget statement (679,184) (269,097)

Net cash generated from operating, investing and financing 
activities 17,255,897 5,288,689

2011

Original 
budget

Budget 
adjustments Final budget Actual 

outcome Variance

Actual 
outcome 

as % 
of final 
budget

Actual 
outcome 
as % of 
original 
budget

37. Statement of comparative of budget and actual information

Financial Performance

Investment 
revenue – – – 934,531 (934,531) –% –%

Transfers 
recognised ‑ 
operational

310,148,000 – 310,148,000 366,647,215 (56,499,215) 118% 118%

Other own 
revenue – – – 674,642 (674,642) –% –%

Total 
revenue 
(excluding 
capital 
transfers 
and contri-
butions)

310,148,000 – 310,148,000 368,256,388 (58,108,388) 119% 119%

Employee costs (118,843,000) (3,549,000) (122,392,000) (184,080,998) 61,688,998 150% 155%
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2011

Original 
budget

Budget 
adjustments Final budget Actual 

outcome Variance

Actual 
outcome 

as % 
of final 
budget

Actual 
outcome 
as % of 
original 
budget

Deprecia-
tion and asset 
impairment

– – – (1,505,997) 1,505,997 –% –%

Finance charges – – – (162,798) 162,798 –% –%

Other 
expenditure (166,619,000) 1,449,000 (165,170,000) (155,858,664) (9,311,336) 94% 94%

Total 
expenditure (285,462,000) (2,100,000) (287,562,000) (341,608,457) 54,046,457 119% 120%

Surplus/
(Deficit) for 
the year

24,686,000 (2,100,000) 22,586,000 26,647,931 (4,061,931) 118% 108%

Capital expenditure and funds sources

Total capital 
expenditure 24,686,000 – – 11,257,573 (11,257,573) –% 46%

The variances are explained as follows:
Revenue
The variance in the revenue is as a result of direct claims for the remuneration of members amounting to R56.5million.

Employee costs
The variance in the employee costs is as a result of the remuneration of members. The remuneration of members is not funded 
by the GPL’s budget. It is paid by the GPL and is reimbursed on by the provincial treasury.

Operating expenses 
A total amount of R8million savings on goods and services is attributable to the measures that were introduced by the Speaker 
during the 2009/10 financial year, these are briefly discussed below:

�� The reduction in newspaper subscriptions as members and staff are continuously encouraged to access newspapers via 
the internet has reduced expenditure. The GPL has subscribed to on – line newspaper facilities to reduce costs. A total 
savings of R1.2million was realised on printing, publications and subscriptions.

�� The implementation of the HR training plan has reduced expendture by a total saving of R502,096. The following was 
implemented on training:

§§ �The annual HR training plan was strictly informed by the various business units training requirements and through the 
outcome of IPMS reviews and skill audits.
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�� Staff affected by training dates were consulted prior to scheduling of training to avoid non – attendance (fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure).

�� The GPL reserved the right to recover the cost of training from any employee, who failed to attend training without any 
acceptable explanation, after he/she had confirmed attendance.

�� The reduction in the appointment of consultants as they are now only utilised upon compelling needs. A saving of  
R4.2million has been realised on consultants.

�� IT outsourcing R1million saving was as a result of the termination of the contract with the service provider, which was 
subsequently replaced by the appointment of contract employees.

�� Professional services had a saving of R1million as a result of the reduction in the utilisation of external service providers.

�� Parking management has a saving of R117,000. This was realised in this area as a result of the Institution taking over the 
management of its parking facilities.

Capital expenditure
The Institution has under spent by R11million on the capital budget. The under expenditure is mainly on the auditorium conver-
sion project, the replacement of city hall chairs and furniture and equipment of which tendering processes were not concluded 
at the end of the financial year. Furthermore, savings were realised on the refurbishment of the 3rd and 4th floors as well as 
Mayivuke rooms. These funds have been earmarked for revamping offices in the new financial year. Under spending on 
machinery and equipment will be utilised in the new financial year for the aquisition of the city hall chairs, additional office 
furniture for the Institution, computers and servers.

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Notes 2011 2010

Revenue

Government grants & subsidies 366,647,215 295,124,000

Other income

Sundry income 4,440 572,930

Accrued interest – 37,510

Hall bookings revenue 138,368 320,940

Parking income 263,281 –

Aid assistance 128,000 480,000

Insurance refund 130,421 392,832

Foreign currency refund 10,132 –

Gain on sale of assets – 62,000

Interest received 22 934,531 763,137

1,609,173 2,629,349

Expenses (341,445,659) (288,819,997)

Operating surplus 26,810,729 8,933,352

Finance costs 23 (162,798) (129,656)

Surplus for the year 26,647,931 8,803,696

Operating expenses

Accommodation (6,290,697) (2,607,916)

Accounting fees (4,704,344) (1,902,385)

Administration and management fees (297,787) (388,345)

Advertising (1,705,270) (1,388,218)

Assets expensed – (7,805)

Auditors’ remuneration 24 (1,160,328) (1,198,387)

Bank charges (96,701) (96,542)

Cleaning (238,279) (405,831)

Computer expenses (721,324) (570,820)

Detailed Statement of Financial Performance
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

PART 3: FINANCIAL INFORMATION  | 163Your View ~ Our Vision



Notes 2011 2010

Conferences and seminars (3,042,320) (2,164,135)

Consulting and professional fees (11,330,886) (19,491,019)

Consumables (691,250) (458,322)

Contracted services (4,758,923) (1,859,464)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments (1,505,997) (1,191,041)

Employee costs (184,080,998) (161,815,499)

Entertainment (529,326) (836,314)

Gifts (677,659) (249,253)

IT expenses (2,660,687) (2,550,424)

Insurance (658,762) (392,533)

Lease rentals on operating lease (4,862,362) (4,632,022)

Levies (4,958,160) (3,563,923)

Licencing fees (3,584,829) (1,398,421)

Magazines, books and periodicals (96,478) (25,270)

Placement fees (798,646) (1,905,749)

Political party fund (49,729,356) (36,484,000)

Postage (50,903) (258,116)

Printing and stationery (1,145,478) (1,654,984)

Repairs and maintenance (7,885,176) (5,713,709)

Research and development costs – 16,873

Special events (1,085,716) (4,463,495)

Staff bursaries (1,269,621) (197,406)

Subscriptions (1,135,300) (759,801)

Telephone and fax (9,197,347) (8,056,248)

Training (7,495,307) (10,370,333)

Travel ‑ local (15,547,564) (9,076,096)

Travel ‑ overseas (7,388,407) (701,026)

Uniforms (47,420) (2,018)

Venue expenses (16,051) –

(341,445,659) (288,819,997)

Detailed Statement of Financial Performance
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

The supplementary information presented on pages 163 and 164 does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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In the year 2011/12, the GPL will focus on the following key 
Strategic and Operational interventions to realise its goals 
through:

1.�Strengthening Oversight and 
Scrutiny:-

�� Review of the committee system to the extent to which 
structural, operational and systems changes have had 
an impact on the ability of the Committee Support Unit 
along with other immediate support structures of the 
House committees to deliver as expected in the context 
of the GPL.

�� Putting in place mechanisms for implementing the 
Committee Inquiries Act, through learning best practices 
on Committee Inquiries processes, focussing on priority 
areas such as Education; Community Safety; Health and 
Social Development; and Economic Development and 
Rural Development.

�� Training of Members and piloting of Committee Inquiries.

�� Creating an enabling environment for oversight by 
completing the Auditorium as an additional committee 
space.

�� Improve recording, archiving, and transcribing systems 
and services for the House and committees.

2.�Enhancing Administrative Accountability, 
Transparency and Improving Institutional 
Performance and Legislative Compliance 
through implementing the:-

�� IPMS by developing management processes and proce-
dures to improve institutional performance. 

�� Integrated Results Based Planning, Budgeting, M&E and 
Reporting.

�� GPL Monitoring and Evaluation Framework.

�� The GPL/GPG collaborative project on the “Standardisa-
tion of Performance Information for Oversight”.

�� Effective management of information and knowledge:  

Foster effective sharing of information and knowledge 
by embedding knowledge management practices in the 
GPL and enhance the level of innovation, performance 
and quality decision-making.

�� Institutional performance and compliance mechanism 
to enhance priority areas such as employment equity 
targets.

3.�Making laws that are responsive to 
the needs of the people of Gauteng 
through conducting the Study of the 
Socio-Economic Impact of Laws Passed 
Since 1994.

4.�Enabling the people of Gauteng to 
participate effectively in decision-making 
processes that affect their daily lives 
through the effective implementation 
of:-

�� Sector Fora.

�� Develop mechanisms for feedback pertaining to public 
participation in GPLprocesses.

�� Public Participation Strategy: Re-engineering public 
participation processes and systems using lessons from 
the public participation intervention project, including the 
esourcing capacity to implement the strategy, and;

�� Key GPL public participation events where the people of 
of Gauteng are invited as guests of the GPL.

5.�Building Partnerships to enable the GPL 
to fulfil its Constitutional Mandates by:-

�� Profiling the GPL and its role as a representative body of 
the people of Gauteng.

�� Collaborating with institutions supporting democracy, 
research institutions, CBOs and NGOs and Corporate 
Citizens.

�� Building partnerships with Civil Society (Corporate 
citizens, electorate, trade unions, NGOs, youth, women 
and organisations of persons with disabilities).

Outlook for 2011/2012



�� Conducting research on Constituency Offices with a 
view to establishing resource requirements and how they 
are effectively utilised.

�� Developing an integrated approach for  conducting 
formal courtesy visits to parties on a quarterly basis.

�� Consolidating and maintening the GPL stakeholder 
database.

�� Developing  a strategy for partnerships with institutions of 
higher learning in order to design training curriculabased 
on the training and development needs of the GPL.

6.�Enhancing support to Members and 
political parties through improving 
service offering utilising an integrated 
approach to Members and parties.

VRP SKOSANA
SECRETARY TO THE LEGISLATURE
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